
 

  wincoil.gov | Page 1  

 
AGENDA 

 
Winnebago County Courthouse  

400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 
County Board Room, 8th Floor 

 

Thursday, January 11, 2024 
6:00 p.m. 

 
1. Call to Order  ............................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance………………………….…………………………………Kevin McCarthy 
 
3. Agenda Announcements .............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call ................................................................................................ Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings and Public Participation 

A. Awards – None 
B. Presentation – Agent for the Winnebago County Trustee Program 
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – None 

 
6. Approval of Minutes .................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Approval of November 30, 2023 minutes  
B. Layover of December 14, 2023 minutes  

 
7. Consent Agenda………………………………………………….………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report   
B. Auditor’s Report 

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments require a 30-day 

layover unless there is a suspension of the rule) 
 

9. Reports of Standing Committees ………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

A. Finance Committee ....................................................... John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
B. Zoning Committee ........................................................ Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 



wincoil.gov | Page 2  

1. Z-04-23 A Map Amendment to Rezone 2.41+- Acres from the RA, Rural Agricultural 
Residential District (a Sub-District of the RA District) to the RE, Rural Estate District (a 
Sub-District of the RA District) for the property that is commonly known as 3176 
Freeport Road, Rockton, IL 61072, in Rockton Township, District 2, to be laid over 

2. Committee Report 
 

C. Economic Development Committee .......................... John Sweeney, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Granting Authority to the Winnebago County Board Chairman to Execute 

the Documents Necessary to Complete a Loan for $65,000 from the Revolving Loan 
Fund to Xcel Foam and Packaging, LLC 

3. Resolution Granting Authority to the Winnebago County Board Chairman to Execute 
the Documents Necessary to Complete a Loan for $50,000 from the Revolving Loan 
Fund to Rogue Event Rentals, LLC 
 

D. Operations and Administrative Committee ............ Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Memorandum of Understanding for 

Information Technology Support Services for the Northern Illinois Training Advisory 
Board 

3. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement for 
Information Technology Support Services Between the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
and the Rockford Housing Authority 

4. Resolution Awarding Fence Repair at Juvenile Detention Center Using CIP PSST 2023 
Funds 
Cost: $40,580 

5. Resolution Awarding Tile and Grout Repairs at Juvenile Detention Center Using CIP 
PSST 2023 Funds 
Cost: $14,300 

 
E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. (23-040) Ordinance Establishing Speed Zone on Cunningham Road from Lamson Drive 

to Falconer Road 
Cost:  $ n/a        C.B. District:  1 

3. (23-041) Resolution Authorizing an Annual Professional Services Agreement with 
Geocon Professional Services for Geotechnical Engineering, Materials Engineering, 
Testing and Other Related Services  
Cost: $125,000 (total for all annual professional serv. agreements)  C.B. District: 
County Wide 

4. (23-042) Resolution Authorizing an Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement 
between Winnebago County and Region 1 Planning Council for Implementation of a 
Section 319 US EPA Grant  
Cost: $57,507.5 (100% reimbursable); $24,000 in kind services  C.B. District:  18 

5. (23-043) Resolution Permitting the Relocation of a Right-In / Right-Out Access on 
Perryville Road and Granting Full Access to Nimtz Road East of Perryville Road  



wincoil.gov | Page 3  

Cost:  $ n/a       C.B. District:  7, 8, 20 
 

F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee……………………Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Authorizing the Use of Propertyroom.Com to Auction Items Stored in 

Evidence that have been Approved to be Auctioned or Destroyed 
3. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement Between 

the County of Winnebago, Illinois and the Illinois Department of Children and Family 
Services (DCFS) 

4. Resolution Authorizing Independent Contractor Agreement for Services with Tommy 
Meeks as a Winnebago County Community Liaison 

5. Resolution Authorizing Agreement Between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, the 
17th Judicial Circuit Court and Remedies Renewing Lives, Inc.  

6. Resolution Authorizing Agreement Between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, and 
Rosecrance, Inc. for Court-Ordered Assessments Program  

 
10. Unfinished Business …………………………….……………………………………..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

 
11. New Business………………………………………………………………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

(Per County Board rules, passage will require a suspension of Board rules). 
A. Resolution Awarding State Lobbyist/Consulting Services 
 

12. Announcements & Communications ..................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
A. Correspondence (see packet)   

 
13. Closed Session to Discuss Pending Litigation................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli   

 
14.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………..….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

Next Meeting:  Thursday, January 25, 2024 



Awards,  
Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 



Approval of 
Minutes 

























CONSENT 
AGENDA 













Appointments 



Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 



ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



Attachment 
 ZONING COMMITTEE  

OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 
 January 11, 2024  
 

Zoning Committee……….………….......………..……….....…Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

       PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS: 
 

  TO BE LAID OVER: 

1. Z-04-23 A MAP AMENDMENT TO REZONE 2.41+- ACRES FROM THE RA, RURAL 
AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (A SUB-DISTRICT OF THE RA DISTRICT) 
TO THE RE, RURAL ESTATE DISTRICT (A SUB-DISTRICT OF THE RA DISTRICT) 
requested by Scott Robinson, Property Owner, for the property that is commonly known as 3176 
Freeport Road, Rockton, IL 61072, in Rockton Township.        

 PIN: 03-27-200-046                                                                                              C.B. District 2 
      Lesa Rating: N/A                                             Consistent W/2030 LRMP-Future Map: YES 

ZBA Recommendation:  APPROVAL (7-0) 
   ZC Recommendation:  APPROVAL (5-0) 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
2.  COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; not 

intended as an official public notice):  
 

• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) 
 meeting is tentatively scheduled for Tuesday, February 13, 2024, at 5:30 p.m. in 
 Room 303 of the County Administration Building.   
 
• Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting is 
 tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, February 21, 2023, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of the 
 County Administration Building.   

 
  



ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

 COMMITTEE 



Resolution Executive Summary 
Committee Date: Thursday, January 4, 2024 
Committee: Economic Development 
Prepared By: Jas Bilich  & Chris Dornbush  

Regional Planning & Economic Development Department 
404 Elm Street, Rm 403, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 

Phone: (815) 319- 4350 | E-mail: permits@rped.wincoil.gov 

Document Title:  Resolution Granting Authority To The Winnebago County Board Chairman To 
Execute The Documents Necessary To Complete A Loan For $65,000 From 
The Revolving Loan Fund To Xcel Foam & Packaging, LLC 

County Code: 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq., IGA 2014-CR-122 (original) & IGA Update 2016-CR-013 

Board Meeting Date: Thursday, January 11, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted? Yes Appropriation Amount:   $65,000 
If not, explain funding source:   
ORG - OBJ - Project Code:  
Fund available in fund #0307 (Revolving Loan Fund) 

Budget Impact: None - Budgeted 

Background Information: 
Xcel Foam & Packaging, LLC have been in business since 2021 offering numerous packaging 
solutions for customers, and are owned by Diego A. Guerrero. Xcel utilizes several different 
foams, corrugated, paper, and hexa-comb packaging options that can be laser-cut to fit any item. 
Xcel has leased its current location, since its inception and are seeking to purchase the building, 
located at 2340 11th St, Rockford, IL. Xcel Foam & Packaging is requesting $65,000 for 5 years 
at 7.5% interest rate from the Winnebago County Revolving Loan Fund for operating funds to give 
a buffer to rebuild its cash reserves after closing. Xcel Foam & Packaging has had rapid growth 
and the equity requirement has put a strain on cash reserves. This loan will create 6 additional FTE 
(full time equivalent) employees within 2 years. Xcel Foam & Packaging is utilizing a SBA 504 
Loan and a loan from Stillman BancCorp to purchase the location of their operations to be able to 
expand and utilize the sections the current owner uses.   

Recommendation:  
Administration supports the recommendation as proposed with the terms stated by RLDC for the 
loan regarding Xcel Foam & Packaging, LLC. 

Contract/Agreement: 
NA 

Legal Review:  
Yes 

Follow-Up: 
RLDC & staff normally update the entire Board on an annual basis.

http://www.wincoil.gov/


Sponsored by: John Sweeney    County Board Meeting January 11, 2024 

RESOLUTION 
OF  

THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
SUBMITTED BY: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

 
2024 CR ______ 

 
RESOLUTION GRANTING AUTHORITY TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY  
BOARD CHAIRMAN TO EXECUTE THE DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO 
COMPLETE A LOAN FOR $65,000 FROM THE REVOLVING LOAN FUND  

TO XCEL FOAM & PACKAGING, LLC 
 

WHEREAS, Xcel Foam & Packaging, LLC is a minority-owned specialized packaging 
configuration company started in 2021 by Diego A. Guerrero, and it offers several different 
foam, corrugated, paper, and hexa-comb packaging options that can be laser-cut to fit any item; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, Xcel Foam & Packaging, LLC is located at 2340 11th Street, Rockford, 
Illinois and are requesting funds for working capital to rebuild its cash reserves following the 
planned purchase of their current location and the loans associated with the purchase; and  
 

WHEREAS, Xcel Foam & Packaging, LLC has experienced rapid growth in its first 3 
years of operations and need more usable space for manufacturing and storage, and are utilizing 
a Small Business Administration (SBA) 504 Loan and loan from Stillman BancCorp to purchase 
the property; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is estimated that this loan will assist in the creation of six (6) new full-
time equivalent employees in skilled machinist positions over the next two (2) years and generate 
sales which are currently around $3,000,000 in the 3rd year of operation; and 
 

WHEREAS, Xcel Foam & Packaging, LLC has seen rapid growth and have expansion 
needs to be met to continue the growth, and they are seeking a loan to assist with the operational 
funding to be able to purchase the current building, as recommended by the staff of Rockford 
Local Development Corporation (RLDC), sixty-five thousand dollars ($65,000.00) amortized at 
seven and half percent (7.5%) for five (5) years from the County of Winnebago's Revolving 
Loan Fund to Xcel Foam & Packaging, LLC, secured by a subordinated lien on all business 
assets, as well as a personal guarantee by Diego A. Guerrero.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby authorized to 
execute the loan documents prepared by Rockford Local Development Corporation (RLDC) and 
approved by the Winnebago County State’s Attorney’s Office for the loan of sixty-five thousand 
dollars ($65,000.00) at seven and half percent (7.5%) fully amortized over five (5) years to Xcel 
Foam & Packaging, LLC secured by a subordinated lien on all business assets, as well as a 
personal guarantee from Diego A. Guerrero. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be effective on its adoption 



2 
 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago is directed to prepare and deliver certified copies of this resolution to the Winnebago  
County Regional Planning and Economic Development Director, County Finance Director, 
County Administrator, and the County Auditor. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
        Economic Development Committee 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIRMAN  JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIRMAN 

 JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

 ANGELA FELLARS  ANGELA FELLARS 

 VALERIE HANSERD  VALERIE HANSERD 

BRAD LINDMARK  BRAD LINDMARK 

TIM NABORS  TIM NABORS 

JOHN PENNEY  JOHN PENNEY 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY:  JOSEPH CHIARELLI 

CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



 Revolving Loan Fund  
Loan Summary for: 

Xcel Foam & Packaging, LLC 

 
Monday, December 11, 2023    [ 1 / 3 ] 

Applicant:   

Xcel Foam & Packaging, LLC Principal / Officer (%): Diego A. Guerrero (100%) 

Location Address: Website:   https://www.xcelfoam.com/  

2340 11th St. Rockford, Illinois 61104 County Board District #: 12 

 County Board Member: Jaime Salgado 

Jurisdiction: Rockford  

Type of Business:  New (Start-up) X Expansion (Existing) 

Industry: Packaging Service 

 
 

Requested County Revolving Loan Fund: Employees: Current Projected 

Percentage
County: 65,000.00$             7.50% interest 4.76%

5 years
Owner's: 130,000.00$           9.52%
Stillman 
BancCorp 650,000.00$           47.62%
SBA 504 520,000.00$           38.10%

0.00%

Total Financing of 
Project:

1,365,000.00$        100.00%

Investment(s)

 

Full-Time 
Equivalent (FTE): 

15 21 

 

Part Time: 0  

Within the first 2 years of business 
operating, from the opening. 

Total: 6 

***Cost of County funds per projected job created: $10,833 
 
 
 

 
Uses of Loan Proceeds: 

 
• For the operating funds to rebuild cash reserves after building purchase. 

 
 
 

 

Description of Business & Project: 
Xcel Foam & Packaging, LLC (Xcel) is a packaging company owned by Diego A. Guerrero. He started the business in 

2021. Xcel utilizes several different foam, corrugated, paper, and hexacomb packaging options that can be laser-cut to 

fit any item, whether it be manufacturing parts, military weapons, MRI machines, or highly delicate parts. Mr. 

https://www.xcelfoam.com/


 Revolving Loan Fund  
Loan Summary for: 

Xcel Foam & Packaging, LLC 

 
Monday, December 11, 2023    [ 2 / 3 ] 

Guerrero has 15 years experience in his company’s field. Xcel’s primary focus is to provide packaging solutions to a 

variety of vendors and industries in need of specialized packaging configurations. They utilize several different foam, 

corrugated, paper, and hexacomb packaging options that can be laser-cut to fit any item, whether it be manufacturing 

parts, military weapons, MRI machines, or highly delicate parts. Xcel prides itself on its ability to create custom 

packaging material for any item their respective client needs. 

Xcel has leased its current location, 2340 11th Street since its inception. The business has experienced rapid growth in 

its first 3 years of operations, and they are beginning to run out of usable space to manufacture and store all their 

packaging options. Xcel has had to convert usable factory space into office areas, as they are unable to expand into 

office areas currently utilized by its property owners. By purchasing the property, Xcel can take control of the facility 

and convert office space into usable factory space by utilizing office spaces currently used by the property owner. 

The business is well-diversified and not overly reliant on one customer or industry. This speaks to Xcel’s wide 

offerings of packaging solutions across several industries. There are a couple of large packaging companies in 

Rockford, including his father’s business, Warrior Industrial Packaging, that directly compete with Xcel. Other 

shipping companies like UPS and Amazon are not considered competitors, as Xcel does not directly ship items and is 

instead only responsible for providing strong and secure packaging options for customers. 

Xcel is seeking $65,000 to finance working capital after straining their cash reserves in the recent deposit of a 10% 

equity requirement for their SBA 504 loan. The working capital will allow the business to continue operations as 

normal until they incur receivables and replenish their cash reserves. $1,300,000 will go towards the purchase of 2340 

11th Street, where Xcel currently occupies. This will allow the business to grow and expand in its current location, as 

well as adding more value to the assets of the company in the future. The revenues are nearly hitting the $3 million 

mark by the 3rd year of operating, the company is showing rapid growth, but also the capability of repayment on their 

debt. Currently the company is showing profit, even after the large amount of funding used for the purchase of 

equipment to operate such a business.  

 
 
 

  
RLDC Recommendation: 

Staff recommends a sixty-five-thousand-dollar ($65,000), term loan to be fully amortized over five (5) years 
at seven and half percent (7.5%) for the following reasons:  
 

1) Participation in this project is projected to contribute to the creation of six Full Time Equivalent’s (FTE). 
 

2) Xcel has demonstrated historic cash flow more than adequate to service total debt.   
 

3) Diego. A Guerrero is an experienced manager with over 15 years in the foam and corrugated packaging 
industry, which will aid in the development and growth of Xcel. 
 

4) Participation in this project benefits job creation in a Labor Surplus area, redevelopment of a 
redevelopment district, and supports a minority-owned business.  

 
 

 



 Revolving Loan Fund  
Loan Summary for: 

Xcel Foam & Packaging, LLC 

 
Monday, December 11, 2023    [ 3 / 3 ] 

 
 

Other Conditions: 
Diego A. Guerrero will personally guarantee the loan. 
 
 
 

Strengths & Weaknesses 
 
 
Strengths 
 
1) Participation in this project is projected to contribute to the creation of six Full Time Equivalent’s (FTE).  
 
2) Xcel has demonstrated historic cash flow more than adequate to service total debt.  
 
3) Diego. A Guerrero is an experienced manager with over 15 years in the foam and corrugated packaging 
industry, which will aid in the development and growth of Xcel.  
 
4) Participation in this project benefits job creation in a Labor Surplus area, redevelopment of a redevelopment 
district, and supports a minority-owned business. 
 
Weaknesses 
 
1) Xcel is a relatively new business with only 2 years of operating history. Despite a negative net income in their 
first year, Xcel has shown excellent growth and Mr. Guerrero's experience in the industry mitigates this risk.  
 

 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Illinois Secretary of State Corporation / LLC Certificate of Good Standing 
2. WinGIS Site Location 
3. Tax Information 
4. Township Assessor Data 
5. Company Website 
6. Revolving Loan Fund Summary Information 



12/7/23, 3:57 PM Business Entity Search

https://apps.ilsos.gov/businessentitysearch/businessentitysearch 1/2

Business Entity Search

Entity Information

Services and More Information

Office of the Secretary of State

Entity

Name

XCEL FOAM & PACKAGING LLC

Principal

Address

402 S 2ND ST

OREGON,IL 610610000

File

Number

10473608 Status ACTIVE on 05-08-2023

Entity Type LLC Type of

LLC

Domestic

Org.

Date/Admission

Date

06-09-2021

Jurisdiction IL

Duration PERPETUAL

Annual

Report

Filing Date

05-08-2023

Annual

Report

Year

2023

Agent

Information

NOEL BALDWIN

330 E. JACKSON STREET

WOODSTOCK, IL 60098

Agent

Change

Date

08-01-2022



12/7/23, 3:57 PM Business Entity Search

https://apps.ilsos.gov/businessentitysearch/businessentitysearch 2/2

Choose a tab below to view services available to this business and more information about

this business.

Purchase Master Entity Certificate of Good Standing

Articles of Amendment Effecting A Name Change

Adopting Assumed Name

Change of Registered Agent and/or Registered Office

https://apps.ilsos.gov/llcartamendment/
https://apps.ilsos.gov/llcassumedadoptname/
https://apps.ilsos.gov/llcagentchange/










12/15/23, 1:01 PM Rockford Township

https://search.rockfordtownshipassessor.net/parcelsearch/sd/rt/assessordb/PropertyDetail.aspx?pn=1136376006 1/3

ROCKFORD TOWNSHIP PROPERTY INFORMATION

Property Aerial Values & Exemptions Tax Bills

Property Location

Parcel Number:
11-36-376-006
Property Code:
216C715
Address:
2340 11TH ST
Rockford, IL 61104
Taxpayer:
DOTBEN23 INVESTMENTS LLC,
10253 N 2ND STREET
MACHESNEY PARK , IL 61115

Legal Description

EXC IRR TR 121.2 FT X 18.4 FT X 19.7 FT X 103
FT LYG 400 FT E OF 11TH ST 1120 FT N OF S
SEC LINE W 614 FT N 158 FT OF S 1278 FT E 1/2
W 1/4 SEC: 36 TWP: 044 RANGE: 001 ACRES:
1.98

SEC / TWP / [LOT] / RNG [BLK] / ACRES
036  044  001  1.98

Improvement Information

NBHD:
54889
Class:
INDUSTRIAL
Land Use:
IMPROVED INDUSTRIAL
Building Name:
SPIDER COMPANY
Zoning:
I1
Year Built:
1916
Exterior Wall Height:
22
Exterior Walls:
BRICK & CB
Gross Building SF:
43,310
Land SF:
97,012



12/15/23, 1:01 PM Rockford Township

https://search.rockfordtownshipassessor.net/parcelsearch/sd/rt/assessordb/PropertyDetail.aspx?pn=1136376006 2/3

Sketch

Notes

Building Permits

Pick-Up Year BP Amount Purpose

2018 26,500.00 ROOF OVERLAY

1998 1,000.00 PARTITION

 49,500.00 Retrofit overlay of High Bay Roof. Spider Company High Bay Roof

Sales History

No recent Sales on file



12/15/23, 1:01 PM Rockford Township

https://search.rockfordtownshipassessor.net/parcelsearch/sd/rt/assessordb/PropertyDetail.aspx?pn=1136376006 3/3

COPYRIGHT © 2017 ROCKFORD TOWNSHIP ASSESSOR'S OFFICE ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.

SDR FACTORY 47960 SF; 2016 BP DONE FOR 2018-NO AV; OR=2021 BOR FINAL DEC.
 

Information on this site was derived from data which was compiled by the Rockford Township Assessor's office solely for the governmental purpose
of property assessment. This information should not be relied upon by anyone as a determination of ownership of property or market value. No
warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the accuracy of data herein, its use, or its interpretation.

Although it is periodically updated, this information may not reflect the data currently on file in the Assessor's office. The assessed values may NOT
be certified values and therefore may be subject to change before being finalized for ad valorem assessment purposes.



12/8/23, 12:09 PM Xcel Foam & Packaging

https://www.xcelfoam.com 1/4

Home

Your One Stop Packaging Shop!

With over 10 years in the packaging industry, Xcel Foam and Packaging was established in July

2021. Based in Rockford, IL, Xcel is a business that prides itself on quality and service. 

Here at Xcel, we have numerous foams, XLPE, PE, EPS, PU, EPP, EPE in multiple colors and

grades in stock, alongside unmatched waterjet cutting capability. We have been able to help out

customers reduce long lead times, with excellent quality products, while still providing great

prices. Materials may be available in standard sheet and roll form, as well as custom cuts and

fabrication.

In addition to fabricating a wide range of foam, plastic, corrugated, and wood materials, we

have also added hexacomb converting. This has opened up opportunity to provide customers

with low volume die cuts and pads for hexacomb products. From simple to complex, big or

small, we have everything for your packaging needs. 

We are the vendor that will do what others won't do, even if it seems too "complicated". We

welcome every opportunity to be of service! 

Why Choose Xcel Foam? 

Xcel Foam & Packaging Home Products Reviews Contact

https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/products
https://www.xcelfoam.com/reviews
https://www.xcelfoam.com/contact


12/8/23, 12:09 PM Xcel Foam & Packaging

https://www.xcelfoam.com 2/4

Xcel Foam & Packaging Home Products Reviews Contact

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1xgdexvAcgpP618vBQ2uGFymr7-0TWRFk/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1A47hzSpbdmHnG158aBKwowdQ19q-Hk9p/view?usp=sharing
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/products
https://www.xcelfoam.com/reviews
https://www.xcelfoam.com/contact


12/8/23, 12:09 PM Xcel Foam & Packaging

https://www.xcelfoam.com 3/4

As a family run business we are proud of our reputation for superior customer service, along

with an excellent design team to help put your ideas into motion. 

We strive on forming partnerships with our customers, and work with them to get the job done

while still maintaining the best price and quality. 

We are constantly seeking to find the latest technology to further our capabilities and to be able

to offer our customers new/improved options. 

Xcel Foam & Packaging Home Products Reviews Contact

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1OR1fFr4CE377GTf4jkIcvpQ7VFRMIIlT/view?usp=sharing
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/products
https://www.xcelfoam.com/reviews
https://www.xcelfoam.com/contact


12/8/23, 12:09 PM Xcel Foam & Packaging

https://www.xcelfoam.com 4/4

815-900-XCEL (9235)

2340 11th St
Rockford, IL 61104

info@xcelfoam.com

Site Map

Home

Products

Reviews

Contact

Hours:
Mon-Fri: 8 am - 4:30 pm

Sat & Sun: Closed 

© Xcel Foam & Packaging. All Rights Reserved.

Xcel Foam & Packaging Home Products Reviews Contact

https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/products
https://www.xcelfoam.com/reviews
https://www.xcelfoam.com/contact
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/home
https://www.xcelfoam.com/products
https://www.xcelfoam.com/reviews
https://www.xcelfoam.com/contact


Winnebago County Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) Program 
Overview 

Wednesday, April 12, 2023 

Rockford Local Development Corporation (RLDC) 
Manages the Revolving Loan Fund Program on behalf of Winnebago County 

• RLDC Agreement approved November 26, 2014 
• Amendment approved January 28, 2016 

John Phelps 
Executive Director of RLDC 
#815-987-8675 

http://rldc.us/index.asp 
120 West State Street, Suite 306 

Rockford, IL  61101 
 

REVOLVING LOAN FUND PROCESS IN A NUTSHELL 
(Assuming approval at each step) 

 

 

• Program is used for Gap Financing, examples of use... 
o Land & Building 
o Equipment & Machinery 
o Working Capital 

 
October 11, 2016 State of Illinois letter relinquishing reporting requirements. 

 

Business 
needs a 

loan 

RLDC 
reviews 

application 

Economic Development 
Committee  

Reviews loan 

County Board 
Reviews loan 

RLDC 
Loan is 

executed 

http://rldc.us/index.asp


Winnebago County Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) Program 
Overview 

Wednesday, April 12, 2023 

Origin of Funding for Revolving Loan Fund Program 

 

 

 

 

• NOT connected with the County’s General Fund, operating costs, etc. 
o It’s a stand-alone fund 

• No liability to Winnebago County 
• Fund generates interest 

o Interest covers management fees 
o Interest balance grows account for further community investment 

Activity Summary 

• Since September 28, 2015 through present (April 1, 2023) 
o 26 loans processed 

 Average number of loans per year 2.89 
o $1,590,500 loans invested into the community 
o Estimated 176.50 Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) jobs created 

• Average loan approximately... 
o Amount $61,200 

 Loan amounts have ranged from $17,500 to $200,000 
o Interest Rate 6.39%  

 Interest rates have ranged from 5.0% to 9.0% 
o Year (term) length 6.73 

 Loan (term) lengths have ranged from 5 to 10 years 
 At times may be amortized out longer, but with balloon payment 

U.S. Department of 
Housing & Urban 

Development  
(HUD) 

State of Illinois 
Department of 

Commerce & Community 
Agency 
 (DCCA) 

State of Illinois 
Department of 

Commerce & Economic 
Opportunity 

 (DCEO) 

Winnebago County 
Economic 

Development 
Committee 

(EDC) 

 
 
 

 
DCCA turned into DCEO 



Resolution Executive Summary 
Committee Date: Thursday, January 4, 2024 
Committee: Economic Development 
Prepared By: Jas Bilich  & Chris Dornbush  

Regional Planning & Economic Development Department 
404 Elm Street, Rm 403, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 

Phone: (815) 319- 4350 | E-mail: permits@rped.wincoil.gov 

Document Title:  Resolution Granting Authority To The Winnebago County Board Chairman To 
Execute The Documents Necessary To Complete A Loan For $50,000 From 
The Revolving Loan Fund To Rogue Event Rentals LLC 

County Code: 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq., IGA 2014-CR-122 (original) & IGA Update 2016-CR-013 

Board Meeting Date: Thursday, January 11, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted? Yes Appropriation Amount:   $50,000 
If not, explain funding source:   
ORG - OBJ - Project Code:  
Fund available in fund #0307 (Revolving Loan Fund) 

Budget Impact: None - Budgeted 

Background Information: 
Rogue Event Rentals, LLC have been doing business as Brent’s Bouncin Inflatables since 2023 
offering numerous inflatable toys to lease for customers, and are owned by Alexander Blondin. 
Brent’s Bouncin Inflatables offers multiple inflatable toys like bounce houses, slides, mechanical 
bull, etc. to lease. Rogue Event Rentals is owned by Alexander Blondin who also owns Bubbles 
and Bows, LLC, which are both located at 14411 De La Tour Drive, South Beloit, Illinois. Rogue 
Event Rentals is requesting $50,000 for 1 year, amortized at 5 years, at 8.0% interest rate from the 
Winnebago County Revolving Loan Fund for operating funds to fund the winter months when 
rentals of inflatables are low. Rogue Event Rentals has had instant success since the purchase and 
are seeking funding for the slow season. This loan will create 6 additional FTE (full time 
equivalent) employees within 2 years. Bubbles and Bows, Alexander’s other business,  is utilizing 
a loan from NICDC and has an exemplary repayment history and shows strong credit worthiness. 

Recommendation:  
Administration supports the recommendation as proposed with the terms stated by RLDC for the 
loan regarding Rogue Event Rentals, LLC. 

Contract/Agreement: 
NA 

Legal Review:  
Yes 

Follow-Up: 
RLDC & staff normally update the entire Board on an annual basis.

http://www.wincoil.gov/


Sponsored by: John Sweeney    County Board Meeting January 11, 2024 

RESOLUTION 
OF  

THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

SUBMITTED BY: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 

2024 CR ______ 
 

RESOLUTION GRANTING AUTHORITY TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY  
BOARD CHAIRMAN TO EXECUTE THE DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO 
COMPLETE A LOAN FOR $50,000 FROM THE REVOLVING LOAN FUND  

TO ROGUE EVENT RENTALS, LLC 
 

WHEREAS, Rogue Event Rentals, LLC doing business as (d/b/a) Brent’s Bouncin 
Inflatables was acquired by Alexander Blondin in March 2023 and it specializes in servicing and 
leasing inflatable toys for parties; and 
 

WHEREAS, Rogue Event Rentals, LLC is located at 14411 De La Tour Drive, South 
Beloit, Illinois and are requesting funds for working capital to fund operations through the winter 
months when rentals of inflatables are low; and  
 

WHEREAS, Rogue Event Rentals, LLC has experienced instant success since the 
acquisition, but needs operating capital to fund the business and retain employees through the 
winter months; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is estimated that this loan will assist in the creation of six (6) new full-
time equivalent employees over the next two (2) years and generate sales which are currently 
around $1.6 million dollars annualized; and 
 

WHEREAS, Rogue Event Rentals, LLC has seen instant success and strong revenues, 
and they are seeking a loan to assist with operating capital to fund operations during the slower 
winter months, as recommended by the staff of Rockford Local Development Corporation 
(RLDC), fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) for one (1) year, amortized at eight percent (8%) for 
five (5) years from the County of Winnebago's Revolving Loan Fund to Rogue Event Rentals, 
LLC, secured by a subordinated lien on all business assets, as well as a personal guarantee by 
Alexander Blondin.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby authorized to 
execute the loan documents prepared by Rockford Local Development Corporation (RLDC) and 
approved by the Winnebago County State’s Attorney’s Office for the loan of fifty thousand 
dollars ($50,000.00) for one (1) year, amortized at eight percent (8%) for five (5) years from the 
County of Winnebago's Revolving Loan Fund to Rogue Event Rentals, LLC, secured by a 
subordinated lien on all business assets, as well as a personal guarantee by Alexander Blondin. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be effective on its adoption. 
 



2 
 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago is directed to prepare and deliver certified copies of this resolution to the Winnebago  
County Regional Planning and Economic Development Director, County Finance Director, 
County Administrator, and the County Auditor. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
        Economic Development Committee 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIRMAN  JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIRMAN 

 JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

 ANGELA FELLARS  ANGELA FELLARS 

 VALERIE HANSERD  VALERIE HANSERD 

BRAD LINDMARK  BRAD LINDMARK 

TIM NABORS  TIM NABORS 

JOHN PENNEY  JOHN PENNEY 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY:  JOSEPH CHIARELLI 

CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



 Revolving Loan Fund  
Loan Summary for: 

Rogue Event Rentals, LLC (d/b/a Brent’s Bouncin Inflatables) 

 
Friday, December 22, 2023    [ 1 / 4 ] 

Applicant: P.I.N.: 04-18-226-024 

Rogue Event Rentals, LLC (d/b/a Brent’s 

Bouncin Inflatables) Principal / Officer (%): Alexander Blondin (100%) 

Location Address: Website:   https://www.bbinflatables.com/   

14411 De La Tour Dr. South Beloit, Illinois 
61104 

County Board District #: 2 

 County Board Member: Jim Webster 

Jurisdiction: South Beloit  

Type of Business:  New (Start-up) X Expansion (Existing) 

Industry: Inflatables Rental 

 
 

Requested County Revolving Loan Fund: Employees: Current Projected 

Percentage
County: 50,000.00$             8.00% interest 50.00%

1 years
Owner's: -$                        0.00%
NICDC 50,000.00$             50.00%

0.00%
0.00%

Total Financing of 
Project:

100,000.00$           100.00%

Investment(s)

 

Full-Time 
Equivalent (FTE): 

18 24 

 

Part Time: 0  

Within the first 2 years of business 
operating, from the opening. 

Total: 6 

***Cost of County funds per projected job created: $8,333 
 
 
 

 
Uses of Loan Proceeds: 

 
• For the operating funds during the slower winter months. 

 
 
 

https://www.bbinflatables.com/


 Revolving Loan Fund  
Loan Summary for: 

Rogue Event Rentals, LLC (d/b/a Brent’s Bouncin Inflatables) 

 
Friday, December 22, 2023    [ 2 / 4 ] 

 

Description of Business & Project: 
Rogue Event Rentals, LLC (d/b/a Brent’s Bouncin Inflatables) is an inflatable toy rental company owned by Alexander 

Blondin. Mr. Blondin, who is an existing client of RLDC, bought the business in March 2023 for $950,000. He has 

operated the business for six months with instant success having reported annualized revenues of $1.6 mil and 

operating profit of $360,000 for the six months ending September 30, 2023. He seeks supplemental operating capital to 

fund the business and keep key employees on the payroll through the seasonally slow winter months. NICDC funded 

its $50,000 loan in early November and now seeks County support for an additional $50,000 to get the business 

through the seasonally slow balance of the winter months. 

Alexander Blondin and Danielle Blondin previously completed the acquisition of Bubbles and Bows Pet Grooming. 

The business was purchased for $680,000 with financing provided by Northern Illinois Community Development 

Corporation which is providing $50,000 to Brent’s in this transaction.  Both Alexander and Danielle have maintained 

their full-time occupations which creates additional income to help service debt as merited although the business 

generates adequate income to service requested debt.  The purchase request was financed through Northwest Bank and 

the SBA 7A loan program with supplemental funding from NICDC. Brent’s Bouncin Inflatables operates out of two 

locations in South Beloit, IL, from where its business can service the southern Wisconsin and northern Illinois stateline 

counties. And their competition is limited to two other businesses, one located in Rockford and the other in Algonquin. 

Alexander currently works as a Senior Tax Accountant at ABC Supply and works closely with many of their related 

companies with financial and tax planning. He is also a CPA and has his bachelor’s degree in both finance and 

accounting with minor in business management from the University of Wisconsin. Danielle is currently a school 

counselor for the School District of Beloit, WI. She graduated with a B.S. in Psychology from Rockford University and 

a Master’s in School Counseling from Marquette University. They intend to keep their jobs as steady income, and have 

retained the location managers to continue overseeing employees and operations.  

Mr. Blondin is looking for permanent working capital from each the County and NICDC totaling $100,000 ($50,000 

each) to support the business and key employee retention during the seasonally slow winter months. NICDC recently 

closed its $50,000 loan but those funds are dissipating as they were used to carry the business in November and 

December. The outlook for both of the businesses is great. Primarily due to the encouraged pet ownership during 

COVID, improved disposable income, and consumer preferences regarding child and pet care. With the instant success 

after the purchase totaling $1.6 mill in revenues since March 2023 and strong operating profits, RLDC recommends the 

loan based also on his strong repayment record.   

 
 
 



 Revolving Loan Fund  
Loan Summary for: 

Rogue Event Rentals, LLC (d/b/a Brent’s Bouncin Inflatables) 

 
Friday, December 22, 2023    [ 3 / 4 ] 

  
RLDC Recommendation: 

Staff recommends a fifty-thousand-dollar ($50,000), 1 year term loan, to be fully amortized over five (5) 
years at eight percent (8%) for the following reasons:  
 

1) Participation in this project is projected to contribute to the creation of six Full Time Equivalent’s (FTE). 
 

2) Brent’s has demonstrated historic cash flow more than adequate to service total debt.   
 

3) Bubbles and Bows has two loans outstanding with NICDC that have an exemplary repayment history 
demonstrating strong creditworthiness of the borrower. 
 

4) Both Alexander and his spouse have income generated from outside the company providing additional 
resources to repay their debts.  

 
 

 
 
 

Other Conditions: 
Alexander Blondin will personally guarantee the loan. 
 
 

Strengths & Weaknesses 
 
 
Strengths 
 
1) Brent’s has demonstrated cash flow sufficient to service total debt including the proposed loan.  
 
2) Participation in this project is projected to contribute to the creation of six (6) full-time jobs within two years.  
 
3) Bubbles and Bows has two loans outstanding with NICDC that have an exemplary repayment history 
demonstrating strong creditworthiness of the borrower.  
 
4) Both Alexander and his spouse have income generated from outside the company providing additional 
resources to repay their debts. 
 
Weaknesses 
 
1) Alexander Blondin is new to the industry.  However, the business he acquired had a strong, albeit short, 
operating history and on-site managers as well as Alex’s significant financial experience which is typically a  
skillset that new entrepreneurs lack. 
 
2) The proposed loan is not adequately secured by project collateral. 

 
 
 



 Revolving Loan Fund  
Loan Summary for: 

Rogue Event Rentals, LLC (d/b/a Brent’s Bouncin Inflatables) 

 
Friday, December 22, 2023    [ 4 / 4 ] 

 
Attachments: 

1. Illinois Secretary of State Corporation / LLC Certificate of Good Standing 
2. WinGIS Site Location 
3. Tax Information 
4. Company Website 
5. Revolving Loan Fund Summary Information 



















Winnebago County Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) Program 
Overview 

Wednesday, April 12, 2023 

Rockford Local Development Corporation (RLDC) 
Manages the Revolving Loan Fund Program on behalf of Winnebago County 

• RLDC Agreement approved November 26, 2014 
• Amendment approved January 28, 2016 

John Phelps 
Executive Director of RLDC 
#815-987-8675 

http://rldc.us/index.asp 
120 West State Street, Suite 306 

Rockford, IL  61101 
 

REVOLVING LOAN FUND PROCESS IN A NUTSHELL 
(Assuming approval at each step) 

 

 

• Program is used for Gap Financing, examples of use... 
o Land & Building 
o Equipment & Machinery 
o Working Capital 

 
October 11, 2016 State of Illinois letter relinquishing reporting requirements. 

 

Business 
needs a 

loan 

RLDC 
reviews 

application 

Economic Development 
Committee  

Reviews loan 

County Board 
Reviews loan 

RLDC 
Loan is 

executed 

http://rldc.us/index.asp


Winnebago County Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) Program 
Overview 

Wednesday, April 12, 2023 

Origin of Funding for Revolving Loan Fund Program 

 

 

 

 

• NOT connected with the County’s General Fund, operating costs, etc. 
o It’s a stand-alone fund 

• No liability to Winnebago County 
• Fund generates interest 

o Interest covers management fees 
o Interest balance grows account for further community investment 

Activity Summary 

• Since September 28, 2015 through present (April 1, 2023) 
o 26 loans processed 

 Average number of loans per year 2.89 
o $1,590,500 loans invested into the community 
o Estimated 176.50 Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) jobs created 

• Average loan approximately... 
o Amount $61,200 

 Loan amounts have ranged from $17,500 to $200,000 
o Interest Rate 6.39%  

 Interest rates have ranged from 5.0% to 9.0% 
o Year (term) length 6.73 

 Loan (term) lengths have ranged from 5 to 10 years 
 At times may be amortized out longer, but with balloon payment 

U.S. Department of 
Housing & Urban 

Development  
(HUD) 

State of Illinois 
Department of 

Commerce & Community 
Agency 
 (DCCA) 

State of Illinois 
Department of 

Commerce & Economic 
Opportunity 

 (DCEO) 

Winnebago County 
Economic 

Development 
Committee 

(EDC) 

 
 
 

 
DCCA turned into DCEO 



OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



Resolution Executive Summary 

Prepared By: Dan Magers 
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date: January 4, 2024 
Board Date:  January 11, 2024     
Resolution Title: Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Memorandum of Understanding for 

Information Technology Support Services for the Northern Illinois Training 
Advisory Board  

Budget Information 
Budgeted? N/A  Amount Budgeted?  
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?  
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: Various County Accounts    Descriptor: 
Budget Impact?  

Background Information: The County of Winnebago, Illinois through its Department of 
Information Technology (DoIT) shall provide Information Technology services to the Northern 
Illinois Training Advisory Board (NITAB) which includes, but are not limited to: a) general 
management of information technology; b) assessment of information technology problem 
areas, formulation of improvement recommendations and facilitation of approved changes 
and/or enhancements; c) workstation, server, network, and technology appliance break/fix 
support; d) email hosting; e) server hosting; f)file/server backup; g) other work activities 
mutually agreed upon by DoIT and the NITAB; h) monthly billing including a summary of hours 
and activities; and i) 24/7/265 support phone number is (815) 319-4300 and support email is 
Helpdesk@doit.wincoil.gov.    

Recommended By:  Dan Magers  

Contract/Agreement Information:  It is recommended the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
execute the Memorandum of Understanding between the County through its Department of 
Information Technology (DoIT) and Northern Illinois Training Advisory Board (NITAB). The 
agreement duration is November 17, 2023 through November 17, 2024. 

Follow-Up Steps:  Execution of the Memorandum of Understanding. 



County Board Meeting: January 11, 2024 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 

2024 CR 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT SERVICES FOR THE NORTHERN ILLINOIS TRAINING ADVISORY BOARD 

WHEREAS, Section 2-212 of the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
provides that, “the purpose of the Information technology department is to provide computer, 
data processing and record retention services primarily to offices and departments of county 
government and, secondarily, upon specific authorization of the county board, to units of local 
government within or outside the county, and to other area businesses”; and 

WHEREAS, Northern Illinois Training Advisory Board has requested information 
technology support services from the County of Winnebago, Illinois through its Department 
of Information Technology; and 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the request to provide information technology 
services and recommends executing the memorandum of understanding (MOU) under the terms 
set forth in the MOU (see Resolution Exhibit A).  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is authorized to execute 
the Memorandum of Understanding between the County of Winnebago, Illinois through its 
Department of Information Technology and the Northern Illinois Training Advisory Board, 
in substantially the same form as contained in Exhibit A.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Finance 
Director, Chief Information Officer, County Board Office, and County Auditor.         



Respectfully Submitted, 
       OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Department of Information Technology |  404 Elm St, Rm 506, Rockford, IL 61101  |  wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319- 4300 |  Email: Helpdesk@doit.wincoil.gov 

Date: November 17, 2023 

To: Jeff Schelling 
Executive Director 
527 Colman Center Drive 
Rockford, IL 61108 

From: Dan Magers 
Chief Information Officer 
404 Elm Street 
Rockford, IL 61101 

Subject: Memorandum of Understanding – Information Technology Support Services for the Northern 
Illinois Training Advisory Board 

General Responsibilities: 

The County of Winnebago, Illinois (County) through its Department of Information Technology (DoIT) 
shall provide Information Technology services to the Northern Illinois Training Advisory Board (NITAB) 
which includes, but are not limited to: a) general management of information technology; b) assessment 
of information technology problem areas, formulation of improvement recommendations and 
facilitation of approved changes and/or enhancements; c) workstation, server, network, and technology 
appliance break/fix support; d) email hosting; e) server hosting; f)file/server backup; g) other work 
activities mutually agreed upon by DoIT and the NITAB; h) monthly billing including a summary of hours 
and activities; and i) 24/7/265 support phone number is (815) 319-4300 and support email is 
Helpdesk@doit.wincoil.gov. 

Supervision: 

Works under the broad guidance of Executive Director Jeff Schelling or designee(s). 

Agreement Duration: 

November 17, 2023 through November 17, 2024. 

Payment: 

DoIT shall provide information technology labor at the rate of $71.14 per hour plus approved materials 
and travel expenses, planned or unplanned afterhours labor will be billed at the rate of $106.71; service 
calls are billed door to door. 

A 15% administrative overhead fee will be charged for any materials where DoIT funds are used whereas 
an invoice will be issued for the cost of the materials plus 15%. DoIT receives special pricing on specific 

Resolution Exhibit A

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:Helpdesk@doit.wincoil.gov


 

Department of Information Technology |  404 Elm St, Rm 506, Rockford, IL 61101  |  wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319- 4300 |  Email: Helpdesk@doit.wincoil.gov 

 

models of laptops and desktops; DoIT will charge labor for gathering specifications/configuration 
recommendations. 
 
Warranty: 
 
None. 
 
Limitation of Liability: 
 
In no event shall the County and the County through its DoIT be liable in contract, tort, strict liability, 
warranty or otherwise, for any special, incidental or consequential damages, such as, but not limited 
to, delay, disruption, loss of product, loss of anticipated revenue, loss of use of the equipment or 
system, non-operation or increased expense of operation of other equipment or systems, cost of 
capital, or cost of purchase or replacement equipment, systems or power. 
 
Termination: 
 
During the course of this agreement, and providing a 30-day written notice, the County or the NITAB 
may seek to alter or terminate this agreement. This agreement shall continue in force for a period of 
one (1) year. Upon expiration thereof, this agreement will continue in force until either party notifies the 
other party in writing of its intent to alter or terminate this agreement. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Memorandum of Understanding on the 
_____ day of _________________, 2023. 
 
Agreed: 
 
 
 
Joseph V. Chiarelli        Jeff Schelling, Executive Director 
Chairman of the County Board of the      NITAB 
County of Winnebago, Illinois   
        
 
Attest: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 

http://www.wincoil.us/


Resolution Executive Summary 

Prepared By: Dan Magers 
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date: January 4, 2024 
Board Date:  January 11, 2024  
Resolution Title: Resolution Authorizing the Execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement for 

Information Technology Support Services Between the County Of Winnebago, 
Illinois and the Rockford Housing Authority 

Budget Information 
Budgeted? N/A  Amount Budgeted?  
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?  
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: Various County Accounts    Descriptor: 
Budget Impact?  

Background Information: This resolution is to extend the current agreement between Rockford 
Housing Authority and the Winnebago County Department of Information Technology (DoIT) to 
provide support services. The previous agreement has been in place since 2017. 

Recommended By:  Dan Magers  

Contract/Agreement Information:  It is recommended County proceed with the 
intergovernmental agreement to provide Information Technology Support Services to the 
Rockford Housing Authority by the County through its WinCo DoIT.  

Follow-Up Steps:  Department of Information Technology will finalize the agreement between 
Winnebago County and Rockford Housing Authority.  



County Board Meeting: January 11, 2024 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 

2024 CR 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT SERVICES BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS  

AND THE ROCKFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY 

WHEREAS, Section 2-212 of the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
provides that, “the purpose of the Information technology department is to provide computer, 
data processing and record retention services primarily to offices and departments of county 
government and, secondarily, upon specific authorization of the county board, to units of local 
government within or outside the county, and to other area businesses”; and 

WHEREAS, the Rockford Housing Authority (RHA) and the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois through its Department of Information Technology (WinCo DoIT) entered into an 
intergovernmental agreement for information technology services in December 2017, and 
RHA has requested to continue to use WinCo DoIT as a comprehensive technology and 
network service provider; and 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the agreement to provide information technology 
services and recommends executing the intergovernmental agreement under the terms set forth 
in the agreement (see Resolution Exhibit A).  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is authorized to execute an 
Intergovernmental Agreement between the County of Winnebago, Illinois and the Rockford 
Housing Authority, in substantially the same form as contained in Exhibit A.   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Finance 
Director, Chief Information Officer, County Board Office, and County Auditor.         



Respectfully Submitted, 
       OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



1 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
SUPPORT SERVICES BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO   

AND THE ROCKFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY 

           THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered this ___ day 
of __________________ , 2023, by and between the County of Winnebago, Illinois (the 
“County”), a body politic and corporate and the Rockford Housing Authority, (the “RHA”), a 
Municipal Corporation organized pursuant to 310 ILCS 10/1, et seq (collectively “the Parties”). 

WHEREAS, the RHA is a municipal corporation that provides decent, safe and sanitary 
housing for residents in the City of Rockford, Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, the RHA has certain information technology needs in order to provide these 
services to its residents; and 

WHEREAS, the County through its Department of Information Technology, (WinCo 
DoIT), provides certain information technology services to governmental agencies in the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, in December 2017 the Parties previously entered into an Intergovernmental 
Agreement for the County to provide Information Technology Support Services to the RHA; and  

WHEREAS, the RHA seeks to continue to use WinCo DoIT as a comprehensive 
technology and network service provider; and 

WHEREAS, the RHA will benefit by the cooperation evidenced by the agreement between 
the public bodies who are parties hereto; and  

WHEREAS, RHA and the County seek to collaborate on efficiency in areas of information 
technology and network services; and 

WHEREAS, the RHA Procurement Policy allows for the entry of an Intergovernmental 
Agreement; and 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and mutual agreements contained 
herein, the parties agree as follows: 

I. AUTHORITY

This Agreement is entered between the County and RHA pursuant to the Illinois 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Act (5 ILCS 220/1 et seq.) the Housing Authority Act (310 ILCS 
10/1 et seq.) and Housing Cooperation Act (310 ILCS 15/1). 

Resolution Exhibit A



2 
 

 II. PURPOSE 
 

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide general Information Technology Support 
Services to the RHA. These Information Technology and Network services shall be provided to 
the RHA by the County through its WinCo DoIT.  
 

 III.  WinCo DoIT RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 

WinCo DoIT shall provide Information Technology services to the RHA which include 
but are not limited to: a) general management of information technology; b) assessment of 
information technology problem areas, formulation of improvement recommendations and 
facilitation of approved changes/enhancements, security breach response; c) workstation, server, 
network, technology appliance break/fix support; d) other work activities mutually agreed upon 
by WinCo DoIT and the RHA; e) monthly billing including a summary of hours and activities; 
and f) 24/7/365 support via support phone number (815) 319-4300 and support email via 
Helpdesk@doit.wincoil.gov.  
 
 IV. RHA RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 
           The RHA shall provide WinCo DoIT with guidance from Linda Dorsey Tillman of the RHA 
or her designee as to the services required under this Agreement.   

 
V.        COMPENSATION: 
 

1. The County, through WinCo DoIT shall provide Information Technology 
Support Services to the RHA for seventy-two (72) hours per month at the rate 
of Four Thousand Nine Hundred Sixty-Eight and 00/100 Dollars ($4,968.00) 
per month.  Hours exceeding seventy-two (72) hours per month will be billed 
at the rate of Sixty-Nine and 00/100 Dollars ($69.00) per hour.  Unused hours 
may not be carried over. Billing occurs door to door. RHA shall procure all 
technology-related materials, including any hardware and software costs.   

2. WinCo DoIT shall bill the RHA monthly with invoices setting forth the 
services performed and hours worked .  The RHA shall pay these invoices 
according to the Illinois Local Government Prompt Payment Act, 50 ILCS 
505/1 et seq. 

 
 VI.      TERM 
 

1. The term of this Agreement shall begin on execution and shall extend through 
______________, 2024. This Agreement may be extended for additional One 
(1) year terms for a maximum total of five (5) years by written agreement of 
the parties.  

2. The RHA or County may terminate this Agreement from time to time for the 
RHA or the County’s convenience. The RHA and County must give thirty (30) 
days  written notice of the request to terminate this Agreement for convenience. 
Notice of the termination specifying the effective date of the termination must 



3 
 

be given as set forth in Article VIII of this Agreement. Upon receipt of this 
termination notice, the RHA and County shall discontinue all services upon the 
effective date of the termination notice. In the event of termination for 
convenience by the RHA or County, the RHA shall be liable only for payment 
for services rendered up to the effective date of the termination.  

 
 VII.  CONTACT PERSONS 
 

For purposes of administering this Agreement, the County representative is the County 
Administrator or designee, and for the RHA; the Chief Executive Officer or designee. 
 
 VIII.  NOTICES 
 

Notices to Parties under this Agreement shall be addressed to: 
 
 Patrick Thompson 
 County Administrator     
 County of Winnebago, Illinois   

404 Elm Street, Suite 533     
Rockford, Illinois 61101  
 
Laura Snyder  
CEO 
Rockford Housing Authority  
223 S. Winnebago Street 
Rockford, Illinois 61102 
 
Attorney Timothy F. Horning 
Meyer and Horning P.C. 
3400 N. Rockton Avenue 
Rockford, Illinois 61103 
     
              
All Notices, requests and communications which are required or may be given under this 

Agreement, other than routine communications necessary for the day-to-day operation of these 
services, shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally 
or sent at a minimum by First Class Mail, postage prepaid. 
 
 IX.  WAIVERS 
 

It is understood and agreed that nothing contained herein is intended or should be construed 
as in any way affecting the status of the RHA and the County as separate, independent and distinct 
municipal corporations under Illinois or any other law.  It is further understood and agreed that the 
entry into this Agreement by the County and the RHA shall not operate or be construed as a way 
of limiting any rights, claims or actions they may have against the other. In no event shall the 
County or WinCo DoIT be liable to the RHA in contract, tort, strict liability, warranty or otherwise 



4 
 

for any special, incidental or consequential damages, such as, but not limited to delay, disruption, 
loss of product, loss of anticipated revenue, loss of use of the equipment or system, non-operation 
or increased expense of operation of other equipment or systems, cost of capital or cost of purchase 
or replacement equipment, systems or power.  
 
 X.  COUNTERPARTS 
 

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original. 

 
 
 XI.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT; AMENDMENTS; SEVERABILITY 
 

The Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the Parties and supersedes all 
prior communications and writings with respect to the content of this Agreement. This Agreement 
cannot be modified or amended except by mutual written agreement of the parties. If any term or 
provision of this Agreement is rendered invalid or unenforceable for any reason, or declared null 
and void by any court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall 
remain in full force and effect except as otherwise provided herein. 
 
 XII.  AUTHORITY 
 
 The County and RHA each warrant to the other that they have the authority to enter into 
this Agreement and that the person or persons executing this Agreement on their behalf has been 
duly authorized to act as the representative or officer of each respective party in affixing their 
signatures to the Agreement.  The County and RHA hereto agree to sign such documents, enact 
such ordinances or resolutions, or perform such further obligations as may be necessary to 
effectuate the purposes of this Agreement. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement of this            day  
 
of                                       , 2023. 

 
 
 
     
 
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 
 

 
 
 
 



5 
 

 
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

BY:      ________________________________                                                           
              Joseph V. Chiarelli 
              Chairman of the County Board of the  
              County of Winnebago, Illinois 
ATTEST: 
 
 
BY: ____________________________                                                            
        Lori Gummow 
        Clerk of the County Board of the 
        County of Winnebago, Illinois 

 
 
 
 
 
 
ROCKFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY 

 
 
BY:___________________________________                                                                  

         Laura Snyder, Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Resolution Executive Summary 
For ARPA or CIP Projects 

Prepared By: Purchasing Department for Facilities Department 
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date: January 4, 2024 
Board Date:  January 11, 2024     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Fence Repair at Juvenile Detention Center Using CIP 

PSST 2023 Funds 

Budget Information 
Budgeted? YES   Amount Budgeted?  $75,000 
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?  
If ARPA or CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   $75,000  
Over or Under approved amount? UNDER   By: $34,420 
Reason for ARPA or CIP increase?  N/A 
If ARPA funded, was it approved by Baker Tilly?  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200-46310-C2323    Descriptor: CIP PSST 2023-Land Improvement 
Budget Impact? $ 40,580 

Background Information: The outside recreation area at the detention center is used an average of 2 
hours per day, weather permitting, and is important to the physical activity requirements for the 
detainees.  Original to the building, built in 1991, sections of the fence securing the outside recreation 
area are deteriorating. Designed with a combination of brick wall sections and chain link fencing, thirty 
years of Midwest weather have worn the brick sections to crumbling in spots. In an effort to reduce 
repair costs, the Facilities team and Juvenile Detention Center team agreed to have the brick sections 
replaced with chain link fencing, which also results in a shorter down time/loss or use of the outside 
recreation area.    

Bid #23B-2318 Fence Repair at Juvenile Detention Center was distributed to 11 potential 
bidders and local suppliers, publicly advertised in RRStar, and advertised on the County 
website. The Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting and Site Visit was attended by seven (7) persons, 
representing five (5) vendors, resulting in two (2) formal Bids (see Resolution Exhibit A). The 
lowest bidder for this project is Ringland-Johnson, Inc at $40,580.  

Recommended By:  Shawn Franks, Facilities Director 

Follow-Up Steps:  Purchasing Department will prepare and submit a Purchase Order to 
Ringland-Johnson, Inc. in the amount of $40,580. 



County Board Meeting: January 11, 2024 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 

2024 CR 

RESOLUTION AWARDING FENCE REPAIR AT JUVENILE DETENTION CENTER USING CIP PSST 2023 FUNDS 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and,

WHEREAS, Juvenile Detention Center needs repairs to the outside recreation area 
fencing; and, 

WHEREAS, the County went out for Bid #23B-2318 Fence Repair at Juvenile Detention 
Center; and, 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Bid Tab (see Resolution Exhibit A) for the 
aforementioned purchase and recommends awarding to:  

RINGLAND-JOHNSON, INC. 
1725 HUNTWOOD DRIVE 

CHERRY VALLEY, ILLINOIS 61016 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Director of Purchasing is authorized to issue a Purchase Order, 
on behalf of the County of Winnebago, to Ringland-Johnson, Inc., 1725 Huntwood Dr., 
Cherry Valley, IL 61016 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Finance 
Director, Facilities Director, Director of Court Services, Juvenile Detention Center 
Administrator, County Board Office and County Auditor.       



 
Respectfully Submitted, 

       OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



VENDOR NAME
RINGLAND JOHNSON 

CONSTRUCTION
DIRECT MANAGEMENT COMPANY

TOTAL FOR FENCE REPAIR $40,580.00 $98,748

LEAD TIME FOR PARTS/MATERIALS 1 week 4 weeks

NUMBER OF DAYS TO COMPLETE WORK 5 days 3-6 weeks, weather dependent

BID TAB
23B-2318 FENCE REPAIR AT JUVENILE DETENTION CENTER

Winnebago County Purchasing Department
404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov

Phone: (815) 319- 4380 | Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov

Exhibit A



Resolution Executive Summary 
For ARPA or CIP Projects 

Prepared By: Purchasing Department for Facilities Department 
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date: January 4, 2024 
Board Date:  January 11, 2024     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Tile and Grout Repairs at Juvenile Detention Center 

Using CIP 2023 PSST Funds  

Budget Information 
Budgeted? YES   Amount Budgeted?  $39,560 
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?  
If ARPA or CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   $39,560  
Over or Under approved amount? UNDER   By: $14,660 
Reason for ARPA or CIP increase?  N/A 
If ARPA funded, was it approved by Baker Tilly?  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200-46320-C2322    Descriptor: CIP PSST 2023-Building Improvement 
Budget Impact? $ 14,300 

Background Information: Juvenile Detention Center requested repairs for the majority of the 
facility shower stalls, citing lose and broken tiles and grout. Originally budgeted at $50,000, 
the Bid process was interrupted and the project was broken into two parts in response to a 
safety risk to detainees and detention center staff when a detainee was found with a piece of 
grout in his possession.  This prompted an Emergency Purchase for three (3) of 13 stalls, to be 
completed in September 2023, reducing the overall project by $10,440. 

Purchasing went out for competitive Bid, with the remaining budget of $39,560. Bid #23B-
2319 Tile and Grout Repairs at Juvenile Detention Center was distributed to 7 potential bidders 
and local suppliers, publicly advertised in RRStar, and posted on the County website. The 
Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting and Site Visit was attended by one (1) person, resulting in one (1) 
formal Bid (see Resolution Exhibit A). The lowest bidder for this project is Benchmark Flooring, 
Inc. at $14,300, lower than originally quoted, with an additional shower stall (11 stalls 
remaining, 14 total). The impact to the original budget is an overall savings of $14,660 and a 
total cost, if approved, of $35,340 for this project.  

Recommended By:  Shawn Franks, Facilities Director 

Follow-Up Steps:  Purchasing Department will prepare a Purchase Order to Benchmark 
Flooring, Inc. in the amount of $14,300. 



County Board Meeting: January 11, 2024 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 

2024 CR 

RESOLUTION AWARDING TILE AND GROUT REPAIRS AT JUVENILE DETENTION CENTER USING CIP 2023 PSST 
FUNDS 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and,

WHEREAS, Juvenile Detention Center needs repairs to the tile and grout in the 
majority of the facility showers; and, 

WHEREAS, the County went out for Bid #23B-2319 Tile and Grout Repairs at Juvenile 
Detention Center and the lowest bid received was $14,300; and, 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Bid Tab (see Resolution Exhibit A) for the 
aforementioned purchase and recommends awarding to:  

BENCHMARK FLOORING, INC. 
8197 COMMERCE DR. 

LOVES PARK, ILLINOIS  61111 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Director of Purchasing is authorized to issue a Purchase Order, 
on behalf of the County of Winnebago, to Benchmark Flooring, Inc., 8197 Commerce Dr., 
Loves Park, IL 61111 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Finance 
Director, Facilities Director, Director of Court Services, Juvenile Detention Center 
Administrator, County Board Office, and County Auditor.       



 
Respectfully Submitted, 

       OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



VENDOR NAME BENCHMARK FLOORING, INC.

TOTAL FOR TILE AND GROUT REPAIRS FOR 
ELEVEN (11) SHOWERS

$14,300.00

OPTIONAL ADDITIONAL PRICE TO STEAM 
CLEAN ELEVEN (11) SHOWER STALLS

$10,600.00

LEAD TIME FOR PARTS/MATERIALS 7-10 business days

NUMBER OF DAYS TO COMPLETE WORK 5 business days

BID OPENING December 5, 2023 at 11:00 A.M.

BID TAB
23B-2319 TILE AND GROUT REPAIRS AT JUVENILE DETENTION CENTER

Winnebago County Purchasing Department
404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov

Phone: (815) 319- 4380 | Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov

Exhibit A



PUBLIC WORKS 
 COMMITTEE 





























































Public Safety & 
Judiciary 

Committee 



    Resolution Executive Summary 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319- 4225 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov    

Prepared By:   Kyle Boomer 

Committee:   Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date:   December 20, 2023 

Board Meeting Date:     January 11, 2024 

Resolution Title:         Resolution Authorizing the Use of Propertyroom.Com to Auction Items Stored in 
Evidence That Have Been Approved to Be Auctioned or Destroyed 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?       N/A    Appropriation Amount: N/A  

If not, explain funding source:  

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A   Descriptor: PropertyRoom.com to auction items from evidence 

Background Information: The Winnebago County Sheriff’s Department has a large amount of property 
that can either be auctioned or destroyed, in our Evidence Section.  In the past, the County’s Purchasing 
Department would auction 4-5 items at a time. However, we have not had an auction in 6-8 months and 
the Sheriff’s Office now has over 100 items ready to be auctioned.    

Recommendation: Approve the agreement. This contract is no cost to Winnebago County. 
PropertyRoom.com receives 50% of any profit made up to $1,000 on a single item auctioned off. 
PropertyRoom.com receives 25% of any profit on a single item that is sold for over $1,000.  Their money 
is taken from the items sold.  Our Evidence Section is becoming full and this is a way to dispose of the 
property.   

Contract/Agreement:  Attached 

Legal Review:  The State’s Attorney’s Office has reviewed and approved the contract. 

Follow-Up:   n/a 

http://www.wincoil.gov/


County Board:  January 11, 2024 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:  Brad Lindmark 
Submitted by:  Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

 
2024 CR  

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE USE OF PROPERTYROOM.COM TO AUCTION ITEMS STORED 

IN EVIDENCE THAT HAVE BEEN APPROVED TO BE AUCTIONED OR DESTROYED 
 

 WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office proposes an agreement for surplus 
asset management, selling, auction, disposition, and related services with PropertyRoom.com, 
Inc. for a term of one (1) year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement shall commence upon the County’s execution of 
the Agreement, and shall continue for an initial term of one (1) year from the Effective Date and 
thereafter will automatically renew for one (1) consecutive year terms unless written notice of 
non-renewal is provided by either party at least sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the then 
current term; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety & Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the agreement regarding details of services for 
the PropertyRoom.com and recommends approving an agreement from: 

 
PropertyRoom.com, Inc. 
5257 Buckeystown Pike Suite 475 
Frederick, MD 21704 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois that the County Board Chairman is authorized to execute, on behalf of the County of 
Winnebago, an Agreement similar in language to Resolution Exhibit A with PropertyRoom.com, 
Inc., 5257 Buckeystown Pike Suite 475, Frederick, MD 21704.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 

immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Deputy-Chief-Uniform Services 
Bureau, Winnebago County Sheriff, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board 
Office, and County Auditor.                  

                 
 



 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
  PUBLIC SAFETY and JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

            
                  

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER 
 

KEVIN MCCARTHY  KEVIN MCCARTHY 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

                                                                          JEAN CROSBY 
 

 
CHRIS SCROL 
 
 

 CHRIS SCROL 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 

TIM NABORS 
 
 

 TIM NABORS 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 























    Resolution Executive Summary 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319- 4225 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov    

Prepared By:   Rick Ciganek 

Committee:   Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date:   Dec 20, 2023 

Board Meeting Date:     January 11, 2024 

Resolution Title:        Resolution Authorizing the Execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement 
Between the County of Winnebago, Illinois and the Illinois Department of
Children and Family Services (DCFS)

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?       No   Appropriation Amount: 331,313.00  

If not, explain funding source:  Illinois Department of Children and Family Services 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A     Budget Impact: N/A  

Background Information: The Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office proposes to provide policing services for 
the Rockford Area DCFS office. The contract is for two years and all costs related to the Deputy position 
will be covered by the State of Illinois -DCFS. 

Recommendation:    Approve the agreement. 

Contract/Agreement:  Attached 

Legal Review:  The State’s Attorney’s Office has reviewed and approved the contract. 

Follow-Up:   n/a 

http://www.wincoil.gov/


         County Board Meeting: January 11, 2024 
  
  

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
Sponsored by:  Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 
 

2024 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS AND THE ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN 
AND FAMILY SERVICES (DCFS) 

 
 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, on behalf of the Winnebago County 

Sheriff’s Office (Sheriff’s Office) is in a unique position to help support the Illinois Department 
of Children and Family Services (DCFS) Child Protection Specialists (CPS) as they perform their 
duties related to home visits, safety assessments, safety and wellbeing checks, taking youth into 
protective custody, and other responsibilities that require visiting a client’s home; and 

 
WHEREAS, DCFS desires to collaborate with the Sheriff’s Office to enhance safety 

protocols and measures for CPS when they perform the aforementioned duties; and 
 
WHEREAS, the parties are authorized by the Illinois Constitution of 1970, Article VII, 

Section 10 and the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq. to enter into an 
intergovernmental agreement for the provision of such services by the Sheriff’s Office, and the 
parties desire to enter into such an agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the proposed terms of the Intergovernmental 
Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A, and recommends executing the agreement under the 
terms set forth in the Agreement.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is authorized to execute the 
Intergovernmental Agreement between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, on behalf of the 
Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office and the Illinois Department of Children and Family Services 
(DCFS), in substantially the same form as contained in Exhibit A. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 

immediately upon its adoption. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 

and directed to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Winnebago County 
Sheriff, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office and County Auditor. 



               Respectfully submitted, 
           PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER 
 

KEVIN MCCARTHY  KEVIN MCCARTHY 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

                                                                          JEAN CROSBY 
 

 
CHRIS SCROL 
 
 

 CHRIS SCROL 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 

TIM NABORS 
 
 

 TIM NABORS 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



1 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

AND THE ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES (DCFS)

This Intergovernmental Agreement (“IGA”) is entered into by and between the County 
of Winnebago (“County”) on behalf of the Sheriff of Winnebago County (“Sheriff’s Office”) and the 
Illinois Department of Children and Family Services (“DCFS”) (individually, a “Party” and 
collectively, the “Parties”), pursuant to authority granted by the Illinois Constitution of 1970, Article VII, 
Section 10 and the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq. 

I. RECITALS

WHEREAS, DCFS has the primary responsibility of protecting children through the investigation 
of suspected abuse or neglect by parents and other caregivers in a position of trust or authority over the 
child; and 

WHEREAS, the Child Protection Division (CPD) is a specialized component within DCFS tasked 
with the crucial role of investigations into the alleged abuse or neglect of a child; and 

WHEREAS, DCFS Child Protection Specialists (CPS) are required to implement the duties and 
responsibilities of CPD by assessing immediate safety of children and initiating appropriate levels of 
protection needed, observing family situations relating to allegations of abuse and neglect, interviewing 
alleged victims and perpetrators, and placing children in protective custody if necessary; and 

WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office is in a unique position to help support CPS as they perform their 
duties related to home visits, safety assessments, safety and wellbeing checks, taking youth into protective 
custody, and other responsibilities that require visiting a client’s home; and  

WHEREAS, DCFS desires to collaborate with the Sheriff’s Office to enhance safety protocols and 
measures for CPS when they conduct required home visits, safety assessments, safety and well-being checks, 
taking youth into protective custody, and other responsibilities which requires visiting a client’s home; and 

WHEREAS, a strong collaboration between DCFS and the Sheriff’s Office to enhance safety 
protocols and measures will help support CPS in performing their job duties and responsibilities; 
and 

WHEREAS, DCFS and the Sheriff’s Office have created a specialized unit in which a Deputy Sheriff 
will accompany and assist CPS during home visits, safety assessments, safety and well-being checks, taking 
youth into protective custody, and other responsibilities which requires CPS to visit a client’s home. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises, covenants, terms, and conditions set forth 
in this IGA, the Parties agree as follows: 



2 

  

 

II. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS 
 

The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein as though fully set forth. 
 
 
III. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
A.  DCFS Responsibilities  

 
i. CPS will identify, with direction from the Child Protection Specialist Supervisor, Area 

Administrator, or Regional Administrator, instances in which a Deputy Sheriff is needed to 
accompany and assist CPS to a home visit, safety assessment, safety and well-being check, 
taking youth into protective custody, or other responsibilities, which requires CPS to visit a 
client’s home. 

 
ii. CPS will make reasonable efforts to identify and assess any known safety risks prior to 

conducting any home visit, safety assessment, safety and well-being check, taking youth into 
protective custody, or other responsibilities which requires CPS to visit to a client’s home. 

 
iii. CPS will fully brief the assigned Deputy Sheriff on all pertinent and non-confidential 

information, including any identified risks associated with the home visit, safety assessment, 
safety and well-being check, or other responsibilities which requires CPS to visit a client’s 
home.  CPS will share confidential information to the extent necessary to protect the safety of 
CPS or the Deputy Sheriff and such information will be subject to the requirements of Section 
VIII.B.   

 
iv. As directed by the Deputy Sheriff, CPS will adhere to any safety measures identified by the 

Deputy Sheriff in response to the known risks associated with the home visit, safety 
assessment, safety and well-being check, or other responsibilities which requires CPS to visit 
a client’s home. 
 

v. DCFS will provide a dedicated office space, furnished with a desk and office furniture, 
including a secured cabinet, in the local DCFS field office for the assigned Deputy Sheriff. 
The field office location is as follows: 200 S Wyman, Rockford, IL. 
 

vi. If the Deputy Sheriff is dissatisfied with the performance of DCFS pursuant to this IGA, 
DCFS and the Sheriff’s Office shall try to find a mutually agreeable solution.  If the Parties 
are unable to find a mutually agreeable solution, the Sheriff’s Office may terminate this IGA 
pursuant to Section IV. 

B.  Sheriff’s Office’s Responsibilities   
 

i. Provided DCFS performs under Section V, the Sheriff’s Office shall make all reasonable 
efforts to assign one (1) Deputy Sheriff and one (1) squad car to CPD located in Winnebago 
County (“County CPD”) to accompany and assist CPS as needed. 
 



3 

  

 

ii. Contingent on operational capacity, as determined in Sheriff’s Office sole discretion, the 
Deputy Sheriff shall be dedicated five (5) days a week from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. to County CPD.  

 
iii. In the event that the assigned Deputy Sheriff takes benefit time or leave, Sheriff’s Office shall 

make all reasonable efforts to assign an appropriate individual for coverage purposes and to 
assume the duties and responsibilities of the assigned Deputy Sheriff.  

 
iv. As permitted by other duties, as determined in Sheriff’s Office sole discretion, the assigned 

Deputy Sheriff shall assist County CPD in executing child protection warrants issued by the 
Circuit Court of Winnebago County to help locate and return missing youth in care to DCFS.  

 
v. The Sheriff’s Office shall provide a vehicle, fuel, a computer, and routine supplies for the 

assigned Deputy Sheriff as deemed necessary by the Sheriff’s Office, subject to 
reimbursement as set forth in Section V.B. 

 
vi. The Deputy Sheriff detailed to County CPD is and shall remain an employee of the Sheriff’s 

Office and shall be supervised through and directed by the chain-of-command of the Sheriff’s 
Office.  All activities of the assigned Deputy Sheriff shall be undertaken as an employee of 
the Sheriff’s Office pursuant to all applicable laws and Sheriff’s Office rules, regulations, 
policies and procedures.  
 

vii. The Sheriff’s Office personnel assigned to County CPD shall report, document, and record 
their activities, including the number of home visits with which the Deputy Sheriff provided 
assistance to County CPD, according to the Sheriff’s Offices General Orders, rules, and 
regulations. All reports and records generated by the Deputy Sheriff shall be maintained by 
the Sheriff’s Office and shall be provided to DCFS on a monthly basis or more frequently as 
requested. 

 
viii. The assigned Deputy Sheriff shall fully brief CPS on all pertinent and non-confidential 

information known or available to the Sheriff’s Office, including any identified risks 
associated with the home evaluation, home visit, or other responsibilities requiring CPS to 
visit a client’s home. 

 
ix. In the event DCFS believes that the assigned Deputy Sheriff is not effectively performing his 

or her duties and responsibilities, DCFS shall notify the Sheriff’s Office.  A meeting shall be 
conducted with the assigned Deputy Sheriff in order to informally mediate or resolve any 
problems.  If the continued assignment of the Deputy Sheriff is unacceptable to DCFS 
following the meeting, a different Deputy Sheriff shall be assigned by the Sheriff. 

 
x. The Sheriff, at his/her sole discretion, may dismiss, reassign or transfer the assigned Deputy 

Sheriff based on departmental rules, regulations, administrative reasons, departmental 
directives, and/or collective bargaining agreements or when it is in the best interest of the 
Sheriff’s Office to do so. 

 

C.  Nothing in this IGA shall be interpreted to supersede any of the respective policies, general 
orders, protocols, or collective bargaining agreements of DCFS, County, or the Sheriff’s Office. 

 
 
IV. TERM AND TERMINATION 



4 

  

 

 
The Term of this IGA shall begin on January 1, 2024, and shall continue for two (2) years, through 
and until December 31, 2026. Any Party may terminate this IGA at any time and for any reason 
upon thirty (30) days’ written notice. 

 
 
V. REIMBURSEMENT 

 
A. DCFS agrees to reimburse the Sheriff’s Office at the rate of $173,171.00 in year one and 

$158,142.00 in year two in exchange for the Sheriff’s Office assignment of one (1) Deputy 
Sheriff to County CPD pursuant to this IGA. Said payment shall be used by the Sheriff’s 
Office to pay the salary and benefits of such Sheriff’s Deputy.  
 

B. DCFS agrees to reimburse the Sheriff’s Office for the operating costs of one vehicle as 
detailed in the attached budget, which includes, but is not limited to, fuel, oil changes, 
licensing, washing and all other reasonable and necessary maintenance and repairs. 
 

C. In the event that the assigned Deputy Sheriff has taken benefit time or leave and overtime is 
necessary to hire back another Deputy Sheriff for coverage purposes, DCFS agrees to 
reimburse the Sheriff’s Office at the rate of $ $71.4341 an hour not to exceed $3,550.78 
hours for calendar year 2023 and $73.9343 an hour not to exceed $3,675.00 hours for calendar 
year 2024 for such overtime costs. 
 

D. DCFS agrees to reimburse the Sheriff’s Office for other reasonable costs identified pursuant 
to this IGA.  

 
E. The Sheriff’s Office shall send an invoice to DCFS for costs incurred in accordance with 

Section V.A, V.B, and V.C. Invoices shall be prorated and issued on a monthly basis on the 
15th of each month. 

 
F. DCFS shall process payment to the Sheriff’s Office within ninety (90) days of receipt of 

invoice, payable to the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office, 650 W. State Street, Rockford, 
IL 61102.  

 
 
VI. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

 
In the event of a dispute between DCFS and the Sheriff’s Office concerning this IGA, each Party 
shall designate a representative who shall meet to resolve the dispute. If the designated 
representatives fail to resolve the dispute, then the Winnebago County [representative on behalf of 
the County needed] and DCFS’s General Counsel shall be responsible for promptly resolving the 
dispute in good faith and in a cooperative manner.  If the Parties are unable to resolve the dispute, 
either Party may terminate this IGA in accordance with Section IV. 

 
VII. NOTICE 

 
Unless otherwise specified, any notice, demand, or request required hereunder shall be given in 
writing at the addresses set forth below, by any of the following means: (a) personal service during 
regular business hours; (b) facsimile transmission during regular business hours; (c) overnight 
courier; or (d) first class mail properly addressed with postage prepaid and deposited in the U.S. 
mail. Any notice, demand, or request served personally or by facsimile transmission as aforesaid 



5 

  

 

shall be effective upon receipt. Any notice, demand, or request served by overnight courier shall be 
deemed received on the business day immediately following deposit with the overnight courier. Any 
notice, demand, or request served by U.S. mail shall be deemed received two (2) business days 
following deposit in the mail. Notices shall be served at the following addresses or at such other 
place as the Parties may from time to time designate in writing by notice given hereunder. 
 

To the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office: WCSO 
 Attn:  Sheriff Gary Caruana 
 650 W. State St. 
 Rockford, IL 61102 
 
To DCFS: DCFS 
 Attn:  Director’s Office 

60 East Van Buren 
Suite 1339 
Chicago, IL 60605 

 
VIII. MISCELLANEOUS 

 
A.  The Parties shall at all times observe and comply with all applicable federal, state, and local 

laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, codes, and executive orders, now existing or 
hereinafter in effect, which may in any manner affect the performance of this IGA. 
 

B.  When confidential information is exchanged, the following rules shall apply: (i) the 
confidential nature of the information shall be preserved; (ii) the information furnished shall 
be used only for the purposes for which it was made available; (iii) assurance must be given 
that the proper steps shall be taken to safeguard the information; and (iv) access to such 
information shall be limited to personnel who require the information to perform their duties 
or for whom access is permitted by statute or regulation. 
 

C. This IGA is contingent upon and subject to the availability of sufficient funds. DCFS may 
terminate or suspend this IGA in whole or in part, without penalty or further payment being 
required, if (i) sufficient State funds have not been appropriated to DCFS; (ii) the Governor or 
DCFS reserves appropriated funds; or (iii) the Governor or DCFS determines that appropriated 
funds may not be available for payment. DCFS shall provide notice, in writing, to the Sheriff’s 
Office of any such funding failure and its election to terminate or suspend this IGA as soon as 
practicable. Any suspension or termination pursuant to this Section shall be effective upon the 
Sheriff’s Office’s receipt of notice.  Payment shall be due to the Sheriff’s Office in accordance 
with the provisions of Section V up to the date of termination. 
 

D.  This IGA may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 
original and all of which, taken together, shall constitute a single, integrated instrument. 
 

E.   This IGA shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois, 
without regard to conflict of law principles. Each Party agrees to the original jurisdiction of 
those courts located within the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, with regard to any 
controversy arising out of, relating to, or in any way concerning the execution or performance 
of this IGA. 
 



6 

  

 

F.  This IGA constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter 
hereof and supersedes any prior agreements, negotiations, and discussions. This IGA may not 
be modified or amended in any manner without the prior written consent of the Parties. No term 
of this IGA may be waived or discharged orally or by any course of dealing, but only by an 
instrument in writing signed by the Parties. 

 
G. If any term of this IGA or any application thereof is held invalid or unenforceable, the 

remainder of this IGA shall be construed as if such invalid part were never included herein and 
this IGA shall be and remain valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

 
H. This IGA shall not be legally binding if entered into in violation of the provisions of the 

Public Officer Prohibited Activities Act, 50 ILCS 105/0.01 et seq. 
 
I. County shall be responsible for the acts of its agents, officers, or employees in the performance 

of this IGA. 
 
J. DCFS shall be responsible for the acts of its agents, officers, or employees in the performance 

of this IGA. 
 

K. The County and/or Sheriff agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold DCFS harmless from any 
claims, suits or causes of action arising from the performance of the duties of the assigned Deputy 
Sheriff or employment claims brought by the assigned Deputy Sheriff, including but not limited 
to: lawsuits or administrative actions alleging discrimination, civil rights violations, 
noncompliance with employment statutes, workers’ compensation, improper salary withholding, 
improper overtime reimbursement, or improper income tax withholding. 
 

L. This IGA shall not be construed as seeking to either enlarge or diminish any obligation or duty 
owed by one Party with respect to third Parties or to increase the liability of any Party beyond 
that which is imposed by law.   

 
M. This IGA may be renewed for additional periods by mutual consent of the Parties, expressed in 

writing and signed by the Parties. 
 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 



7 

  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused their duly authorized representatives to execute this 
Intergovernmental Agreement on the dates set forth below. 
 

 
 

ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES EXECUTION: The 
undersigned, on behalf of the Illinois Department of Children and Family Services, hereby accepts the 
foregoing Intergovernmental Agreement: 

 
 
 

Marc D. Smith 
Director

Dated: 

Illinois Department of Children and Family Services 
 

 
 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY EXECUTION:  The undersigned, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, a body politic and corporate of the State of Illinois, hereby accepts the foregoing 
Intergovernmental Agreement: 

 
 
 Dated: 

Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Chairman of the County          
Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois 

 
 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGED: 
 
 
 
  Gary Caruana 
  Winnebago County Sheriff 



Winnebago County Sheriff Costs

YEAR 1 YEAR 2
Current Hourly Rate $42.27 $43.75
Base Salary $92,573.93 $95,814.03
Over-Time $3,550.78 $3,675.06
TOTAL SALARY $96,124.71 $99,489.09

F.I.C.A. -- 6.2% $5,959.73 $6,168.32
Medicare - 1.45% $1,393.81 $1,442.59
I.M.R.F. 5.01% $4,815.85 $4,984.40
Unemployment Insurance -- .003% $2.88 $2.98
Worker's Comp ($3.54/$100) $3,402.81 $3,521.91
Health Insurance $22,021.20 $22,021.20
Retiree Insurance $1,040.00 $1,040.00
Life Insurance $30.00 $30.00
TOTAL BENEFITS $38,666.28 $39,211.40

TOTAL SALARY/BENEFIT $134,790.99 $138,700.49

Other Costs
NITAB Training - Annual $85.00 $85.00
Clothing Allowance $950.00 $950.00
Cell Phone $540.00 $540.00
Axon Annual Cost $427.43 $427.43
Radio Airtime Annual Cost (Mobil and Portable) $700.00 $1,000.00
Basic Training $6,020.00 $0.00
Gun/Vest/Badges $2,000.00 $0.00
Medical Exam $600.00 $0.00
Taser/Body Cam $2,118.00 $0.00
Radios(Portable) $8,500.00 $0.00
Total $21,940.43 $3,002.43

Payroll+Other Costs $156,731.42 $141,702.92

Vehicle and Equipment $62,000.00 $0.00
Squad Cam $2,572.91 $1,182.00

$64,572.91 $1,182.00

Vehicle Cost per Year (5 year amortization) $16,439.00 $16,439.00

Total Annual Budget for Winnebago $173,171.00 $158,142.00



Resolution Executive Summary 

Prepared By:   Marlana Dokken 

Committee:   Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date:   December 20, 2023 

Resolution Title: Resolution Authorizing Independent Contractor Agreement for Services with 
Tommy Meeks as a Winnebago County Community Liaison    

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: January 11, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?    Yes   Amount:   $ 12,000.00 

If not, explain funding source:   n/a 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   n/a, multiple  Budget Impact:   n/a 

Background Information:  The County proposes to provide funding to support preventative and 
rehabilitative services at the Winnebago County Resource Intervention Center (RIC).  Tommy Meeks will 
offer mentoring and job counseling to individuals involved in the justice system in Winnebago County. 

Recommendation:    I recommend approval of the following service agreement: 

1) Agreement with Tommy Meeks for Mentoring services @ RIC  $  12,000 

Contract/Agreement: County will execute agreement with Tommy Meeks (Resolution Exhibit A) which 
contains a 30-day out clause.  

Legal Review:  Legal review of agreements was completed. 

Follow-Up:   Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives will proceed with execution of agreements. 



 County Board:  January 11, 2024 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:  Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 
 

2024 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES WITH 
TOMMY MEEKS AS A WINNEBAGO COUNTY COMMUNITY LIAISON    

 
WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board is the statutory governing body of Winnebago 

County, Illinois, a body politic and corporate (County); and 
 
WHEREAS, the County has determined it is beneficial to the community to provide 

mentoring and job counseling to individuals involved in the justice system in Winnebago 
County; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County desires to have Tommy Meeks continue to provide these services 

and act as a liaison between the County and various groups within the community on related 
matters for fiscal year 2024; and 

 
WHEREAS, Tommy Meeks agrees to provide these services for the County under the 

terms and conditions as set forth in the Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A; and        
 
       WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the proposed terms of the Agreement attached 
hereto as Resolution Exhibit A, and recommends executing the agreement under the terms set 
forth in the Agreement.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is authorized to execute the independent 
contractor agreement between the County of Winnebago, Illinois and Tommy Meeks, in 
substantially the same form as contained in Resolution Exhibit A. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Chairman’s Office of Criminal 
Justice Initiatives, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office, and County 
Auditor.                     

 
 
 



           Respectfully submitted, 
           PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

                
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER 
 

KEVIN MCCARTHY  KEVIN MCCARTHY 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

                                                                          JEAN CROSBY 
 

 
CHRIS SCROL 
 
 

 CHRIS SCROL 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 

ANGIE GORAL 
 

TIM NABORS 
 
 

 TIM NABORS 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024.    

   
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



 

 Page 1 of 6 

 
 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT  
FOR SERVICES AS WINNEBAGO COUNTY COMMUNITY LIAISON 

 
This Independent Contractor Agreement (“Agreement”) is made this 1st day of October, 2023,  
between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, a unit of local government (hereinafter referred to 
as “County”), whose principal address is 404 Elm Street, Rockford, Illinois, 61101, and Tommy 
Meeks, whose principal address is 438 Gershwin Lane, Machesney Park, Illinois, 61115,  
(hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”). County and Contractor may be referred to herein 
individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the County has determined it is beneficial to the community to provide 

mentoring and job counseling to individuals involved in the justice system in Winnebago County, 
Illinois; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County desires to have Contractor provide these services and act as a 

liaison between the County and various groups within the community on related matters; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County desires Contractor to provide services described in Section One 

and reporting of accurate and timely data defined in Exhibit A; and 
 
WHEREAS, Contractor agrees to provide these services for the County under the terms 

and conditions as set forth in this Agreement. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, the 
sufficiency of which both Parties hereby acknowledge, it is agreed by and between the County and 
Contractor as follows: 
 

SECTION ONE 
 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK 
 

Utilizing a curriculum as approved by the RIC staff, the services to be performed by the Contractor 
under this Agreement shall be the following: 

 
1. Facilitating four (4), 13-week Wake Up groups for individuals engaged in the justice 

system in Winnebago County at the request of the Probation Department; and 
 

2. Assisting individuals with locating and pursuing employment opportunities; and 
 

3. Representing Winnebago County on various committees and at local functions as requested 
by the County Administrator.  

 



 

 Page 2 of 6 

 
SECTION TWO 

 
PAYMENT 

 
The County shall pay Contractor on a monthly basis for the work to be performed under this 
Agreement as follows:  $1,000.00 per month for eight (8) to ten (10) hours per week.  Contractor 
shall provide the County with a monthly invoice listing all dates and hours worked.  Contractor’s 
invoice shall be paid according to the Illinois Local Government Prompt Payment Act (50 ILCS 
505/1 et. seq).  The County will not reimburse for mileage or expenses.   
 
 

SECTION THREE 
 

RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 
 

It is understood and agreed between the Parties that this Agreement is not intended to nor does it 
create an employment contract between the County, on the one hand, and the Contractor and any 
of Contractor’s employees, on the other hand, not does it create a joint relationship or partnership 
between the Parties hereto.  Neither Contractor nor any of Contractor’s employees are entitled to 
benefits that the County provides for County employees.  Contractor’s relationship to the County 
is solely and exclusively that of an independent contractor.  County may, during the term of this 
Agreement, engage other independent contractors or employees to perform the same work that 
Contractor performs hereunder. 
 

SECTION FOUR 
 

TAX AND UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE LIABILITY 
 

Any payments to Contractor under this Agreement are subject to any and all applicable 
withholdings.  To the extent permitted by Illinois law, Contractor covenants to save the County 
harmless from any and all liability for withholding state or federal income tax, unemployment 
compensation contributions and any other employer’s tax liability now or subsequently imposed 
on County based upon payments made by County to Contractor. 
 

SECTION FIVE 
 

INDEMNIFICATION 
 

The Parties agree to indemnify each other and their officers, directors, employees and agents, from 
and against all claims, liabilities, losses, damages, judgments, penalties, and fines, including 
reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, arising out of or relating to, directly or indirectly: 1) any 
negligent or intentional act or omission of the indemnifying Party associated with its performance  
under this Agreement, or 2) the indemnifying Party’s failure to perform any of its obligations under 
this Agreement. 

 



 

 Page 3 of 6 

 
SECTION SIX 

 
DURATION 

 
The term of this Agreement shall be from October 1, 2023 to September 30, 2024.  Either Party 
may cancel this Agreement for any reason upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other Party.  
This Agreement will not be automatically renewed.     

 
SECTION SEVEN 

 
CONSULTATION AND REPORTING 

 
Each PARTY to this Agreement has the duty to consult and cooperate with the other in the 
performance, development of programming, and the curriculum utilized. The PARTIES agree to 
hold meetings as needed to review the services provided to the 17th Judicial Circuit Court’s 
Resource Intervention Center Program (RIC). 

 
CONTRACTOR agrees to provide relevant data by submitting performance metrics as well as 
narrative on a quarterly basis as outlined in Exhibit A. CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all 
reporting, data collection, as prescribed by the 17th Judicial Circuit Court and COUNTY following 
the deadlines identified below. 
 

REPORTING SCHEDULE 
Reporting Period Date Required Due Date 

October - December Performance Measures, Fiscal Reports January 10th 
January - March Performance Measures, Fiscal Reports April 10th 
April - June Performance Measures, Fiscal Reports July 10th 
July - September  Performance Measures, Fiscal Reports October 10th 

    Note: If a due date falls on a weekend, report is due on the preceding Friday 
 
 

SECTION EIGHT 
 

WAIVER 
 

The failure of either Party hereto at any time or times to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall 
in no way be construed to be a waiver of such provisions or to affect the validity of this Agreement 
or any part hereof, or the right of either Party thereafter to enforce each and every provision in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 Page 4 of 6 

 
SECTION NINE 

 
VALIDITY AND INTERPRETATION 

 
If any term, provision or condition contained in this Agreement is held to be invalid or 
unenforceable, to any extent, the remainder of this Agreement (or the application of the term, 
provision or condition to persons or circumstances other than those in respect of which it is invalid 
or unenforceable) shall not be affected thereby, and each and every other term, provision and 
condition of this Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.  
The validity and interpretation of this contract shall be governed by and construed and enforced in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois. Venue for the resolution of any disputes or the 
enforcement of any rights pursuant to this Agreement shall be in the 17th Judicial Circuit Court of 
Winnebago County, Illinois. 
 
 

SECTION TEN 
 

NOTICES 
 

All notices regarding this agreement shall be delivered to the other Party at the address set forth 
above or at such other address as may be designated by a Party in writing.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signature Page Follows 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 Page 5 of 6 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this contract on the day and year first 
above written. 
 
County of Winnebago, Illinois  Contractor 
a unit of local government 
 
 
By:  _____________________________  _____________________________ 
        Joseph V. Chiarelli                          Tommy Meeks 
        Chairman of the County Board of the     
        County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 Page 6 of 6 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

GOALS/PERFORMANCE MEASURES/STANDARDS 
Instructions: Complete the blanks in table below using projected objectives for the funded year. Your data report 
will reflect these numbers. Please note that any change to objectives will need to be approved by Winnebago County 
Administration. Must include number served for each service. 
 

Objectives/Standards Performance Measures Projected  

Accept referrals for Wake Up Group to change 
thinking patterns # of referrals to group   40 

Increased understanding of history and race relations. # (13-week) groups held  4 

Increased engagement # completing 13-week program 20 

Increase job opportunities through employer 
relationships # of new partnering companies   4 

Increase job opportunities through community 
partnerships 

# of Job Fairs / community events 
attended  4 

Accept Employment-Only Referrals # Employment-Only Referrals 
Received  12 

Increase New Jobs Obtained Through Employment-
Only Referrals 

# New Employment-Only Jobs 
Obtained  10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov 

Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Funding 
Budget Detail Worksheet and Narrative 

A. Personnel / Salary– List each position by title and name of employee, if available. Show the annual
salary rate and the percentage of time to be devoted to the project. Compensation paid for
employees engaged in grant activities must be consistent with that paid for similar work within the
applicant organization.

Name/Position Computation Cost 

  TOTAL SALARY 

SALARY NARRATIVE: 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


5 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov 

Budget Category Amount 

A. Personnel

B. Fringe Benefits

C. Travel

D. Supplies

E. Other Costs

 TOTAL PROJECT COSTS 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


Resolution Executive Summary 

Prepared By:   Marlana Dokken 

Committee:   Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date:   December 20, 2023 

Resolution Title: Resolution Authorizing Agreement Between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
the 17th Judicial Circuit Court and Remedies Renewing Lives, Inc.  

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: January 11, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?    Yes    Amount:   $ 212,349.00 

If not, explain funding source:   n/a 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   n/a     Budget Impact:   n/a 

Background Information:  The County and 17th Judicial Circuit Court proposes to provide funding to 
support preventative and rehabilitative services at the Winnebago County Resource Intervention Center 
(RIC). REMEDIES will provide licensed substance use disorder treatment and partner abuse intervention 
programming services in the RIC. Substance abuse: Services are delivered by individual appointment 
and/or on-going group counseling and include case management and community intervention, urinalysis, 
relapse prevention along with linkage to Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT). Partner Abuse 
Intervention Programming (PAIP): participants are ordered by the 17th Judicial Circuit Court as part of 
their sentencing for domestic violence related crimes. After intake/assessment, program participants 
must attend at least 26 weeks of group programming and actively participate and acknowledge abusive 
behavior against their intimate partner.  

Recommendation:    I recommend approval of the following annual service agreement: 

Agreement with Remedies for Substance Abuse and Partner Abuse Intervention @ RIC    $212,349 

Contract/Agreement: County will execute agreement with REMEDIES agreement (Resolution Exhibit A) 
which contains a 30-day out clause.  

Legal Review:  Legal review of agreement was completed. 

Follow-Up:   Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives will proceed with execution of agreements. 



County Board:  January 11, 2024 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 

2024 CR 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS, 
THE 17TH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT COURT AND REMEDIES RENEWING LIVES, INC.  

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois (County) and the 17th Judicial Circuit Court 
wish to continue to engage the services of Remedies Renewing Lives, Inc. (Remedies) to provide 
substance use disorder treatment services for the Resource Intervention Center Program (RIC); 
and 

WHEREAS, Remedies wishes to continue to provide such services for the County and the 
17th Judicial Circuit Court; and 

WHEREAS, the County, the 17th Judicial Circuit Court and Remedies have negotiated an 
agreement for services for fiscal year 2024, as set forth in the Agreement attached as Exhibit A; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the proposed terms of the Agreement attached 
hereto as Resolution Exhibit A, and recommends executing the agreement under the terms set 
forth in the Agreement.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is authorized to execute the Agreement 
between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, the 17th Judicial Circuit Court and Remedies 
Renewing Lives, Inc., in substantially the same form as contained in Resolution Exhibit A. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Chairman’s Office of Criminal 
Justice Initiatives, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office County 
Auditor, Chief Judge of the 17th Judicial Circuit Court and the Executive Director of 
Remedies.          



Respectfully submitted, 
PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

                
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER 
 

KEVIN MCCARTHY  KEVIN MCCARTHY 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

                                                                          JEAN CROSBY 
 

 
CHRIS SCROL 
 
 

 CHRIS SCROL 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 

ANGIE GORAL 
 

TIM NABORS 
 
 

 TIM NABORS 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 





















































Resolution Executive Summary 

Prepared By:   Marlana Dokken 

Committee:   Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date:   December 20, 2023 

Resolution Title: Resolution Authorizing Agreement Between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
and Rosecrance, Inc. for Court-Ordered Assessments Program   

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: January 11, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?    Yes   Amount:   $ 64,078.00 

If not, explain funding source:   n/a 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   n/a   Budget Impact:   n/a 

Background Information:  The County proposes to provide funding to support services in the Winnebago 
County Jail.  ROSECRANCE will offer assessments in the jail at the request of judges, attorneys, probation, 
and pre-trial release. This funds a ½ time Assessor who may provide up to 400 substance-abuse 
assessments annually. Once assessed, treatment recommendations are provided to the referral source, 
and connections to treatment options are provided to the individual to secure upon release.  

Recommendation:    I recommend approval of the following service agreement: 

Agreement with Rosecrance for assessments at the Winnebago County Jail          $  64,078  

Contract/Agreement: County will execute agreement with ROSECRANCE, (Resolution Exhibit A) which 
contains a 30-day out clause.  

Legal Review:  Legal review of agreements was completed. 

Follow-Up:   Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives will proceed with execution of agreement. 



County Board:  January 11, 2024 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 

2024 CR 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS,
AND ROSECRANCE, INC. FOR COURT-ORDERED ASSESSMENTS PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois (County) recognizes the need for 
substance use disorder assessment and treatment services in the Winnebago County Jail; and 

WHEREAS, Rosecrance, Inc. provides such services and has provided those services to 
individuals in the Jail for a number of years; and 

WHEREAS, the County desires to have Rosecrance continue to provide substance use 
disorder assessment and treatment services in the Jail for fiscal year 2024, pursuant to the 
terms of the Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 

 WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the proposed terms of the Agreement attached 
hereto as Resolution Exhibit A, and recommends executing the agreement under the terms set 
forth in the Agreement.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is authorized to execute the Agreement 
between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, and Rosecrance, Inc., in substantially the same form 
as contained in Resolution Exhibit A. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Chairman’s Office of Criminal 
Justice Initiatives, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office, County 
Auditor, and Winnebago County Jail Superintendent.          



Respectfully submitted, 
PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

                
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER 
 

KEVIN MCCARTHY  KEVIN MCCARTHY 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

                                                                          JEAN CROSBY 
 

 
CHRIS SCROL 
 
 

 CHRIS SCROL 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 

ANGIE GORAL 
 

TIM NABORS 
 
 

 TIM NABORS 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 

 



































UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



NEW BUSINESS 



    Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By:          Marlana Dokken 

Committee:     Legislative & Lobbying Committee 

Committee Date:      January 3, 2024 

Board Date:      January 11, 2024  

Resolution Title:      Resolution Awarding State Lobbyist/Consulting Services 

Was item budgeted?  Yes     Appropriation Amount:   N/A 

If not, explain funding source:  
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  12501-43190     Descriptor:   County Board/Chairman 

Background Information:  
The County Board Office is interested in hiring a firm to provide State Lobbyist/Consulting Services.  The 
Lobbyist will act in liaison with, and report activities to, County Administration.  The Lobbyist will interact on 
behalf on the County’s interests with State legislative and executive branches of government.  The goal is to 
maximize the County’s success in obtaining State funding and favorable legislation.  County priorities includes 
economic development, public safety and public works.   

The Purchasing Department issued a Request for Qualifications RFQ #23Q-2314 State Lobbyist/Consultant 
Services on October 13, 2023.  The solicitation was posted nationwide on the DemandStar government 
bidding portal. There was a total of four submissions received, see Resolution Exhibit A.  An evaluation 
committee was formed and all four firms participated in formal presentations. 

Phelps Barry & Associates, LLC (PBA), was the firm deemed most advantageous to represent the County’s 
best interests in State lobbying.   

Costs:  The fee is a $7,000 monthly retainer with no other costs or fees anticipated.  The agreement services 
will begin effective January 15, 2024.  

Recommendation:  The Legislative and Lobbying Committee, recommends awarding an agreement to Phelps 
Barry & Associates, LLC (PBA). 

Legal Review:  State’s Attorney’s Office will review the agreement prior to execution. 

Follow-Up:   Purchasing Department will route the new agreement and award the RFQ. 



County Board Meeting:  January 11, 2024 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Legislative & Lobbying Committee 

2024 CR 
RESOLUTION AWARDING STATE LOBBYIST/CONSULTING SERVICES 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use.  All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $25,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois is in need of hiring a firm to coordinate the 
County’s State lobbying efforts; and 

WHEREAS, on October 13, 2023, the County i ssued a Request  for Qual i f icat ions 
RFQ # 23Q-2314 for State Lobbyist/Consulting Services; and 

WHEREAS, the Legislative & Lobbying Committee of the County Board for the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the RFQ Tab received for the aforementioned project and 
recommends awarding the contract as follows: 

Phelps Barry and Associates, LLC 
225 East Cook 

Springfield, IL 62704 
(See RFQ Tab - Resolution Exhibit A) 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is authorized to execute an agreement, 
subject to legal review, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, Illinois with PHELPS BARRY AND 
ASSOCIATES, LLC, 225 EAST COOK, SPRINGFIELD, IL, 62704. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 
and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of the Chairman’s Office of 
Criminal Justice Initiatives, Director of Purchasing, Board Office, Finance Director and County 
Auditor. 



Respectfully Submitted, 
LEGISLATIVE & LOBBYING COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 

  JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 

  AARON BOOKER 
 

                      AARON BOOKER 
 

  VALERIE HANSERD 
 

    VALERIE HANSERD 
 

 
TIM NABORS  TIM NABORS 

JOHN PENNEY  JOHN PENNEY 

  JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 

   JOHN F. SWEENEY 
   

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS TAB 
STATE LOBBYIST/CONSULTANT SERVICES 

RFQ – 23Q-2314 NOVEMBER 13, 2023 

VENDOR 

Phelps Barry & Associates, LLC. McGuire Woods Consulting 

Public Sector/GOTB 
Consulting Team 

LITE Strategies, LLC. 

RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A



ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

Announcements & Communications 
Date: January 11, 2024 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 

County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 

Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory
Commission the following:

a. Byron Station, Unit No. 1, Relief from the Requirements of the ASME Code (EPID
L-2023-LLR-0049)

b. Byron Station, Unit Nos. 1 and 2-Exemption from Select Requirements of 10 CFR
Part 73 (EPID L-2023-LLE-0027 [Security Notifications, Reports, and Recordkeeping
and Suspicious Activity Reporting])

c. Braidwood Station, Units 1 and 2, and Byron Station, Unit Nos. 1 and 2-Issuance
of Amendment Nos. 234, 234, 234, and 234 Regarding Adoption of TSTF-370 (EPID
L-2023-LLA-0087)

d. Summary of December 11, 2023, Presubmittal Meeting between the U.S. Nuclear
Regulatory Commission and Constellation Energy Generation, LLC, Regarding
Deletion of Technical Specification 5.6.5.b.5 (EPIDCL-2023-LRM-0099)

e. Federal Register/Vol. 88, No. 246/Tuesday, December 26, 2023/Notices

f. Federal Register/Vol. 89, No. 1/Tuesday, January 2, 2024/Notices

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

2. County Clerk Gummow received from Theresa Grennan, Chief Deputy Winnebago 
County Treasurer the following: 

 
a. Winnebago County Treasurer Bank Balances –November, 2023 
b. Investment Report - as of December 1, 2023 

 
 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us


CLOSED SESSION TO 
DISCUSS PENDING 

LITIGATION 



 

Adjournment 


	Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings & Public Participation
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Zoning Committee
	Economic Development Committee
	Resolution Granting Authority to Winn. Cty. Board Chairman to Execute Documents Necessary to Complete Loan for $65,000 from RLF to Xcel Foam & Packaging, LLC
	Resolution Granting Authority to Winn. Cty. Board Chairman to Execute Documents Necessary to Complete Loan for $50,000 from RLF to Rogue Event Rentals LLC
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of Memorandum of Understanding for IT Support Services for Northern IL Training Advisory Board
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of IGA for IT Support Services Between Cty. of Winn., IL & Rkfd. Housing Authority
	Resolution Awarding Fence Repair at Juvenile Detention Center Using CIP PSST 2023 Funds
	Resolution Awarding Tile & Grout Repairs at Juvenile Detention Center Using CIP 2023 PSST Funds
	Public Works Committee
	(23-040) Ordinance
	(23-041) Resolution
	(23-042) Resolution
	(23-043) Resolution
	Public Safety & Judiciary Committee
	Resolution Authorizing Use of Propertyroom.Com to Auction Items Stored in Evidence that have been Approved to be Auctioned or Destroyed
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of IGA between Cty. of Winn., IL & IL Dept. of Children & Family Services (DCFS)
	Resolution Authorizing Independent Contractor Agreement for Services with Tommy Meeks as Winn. Cty. Community Liaison
	Resolution Authorizing Agreement between Cty. of Winn., IL, 17th Judicial Circuit Court & Remedies Renewing Lives, Inc.
	Resolution Authorizing Agreement between Cty. of Winn., IL & Rosecrance for Court-Ordered Assessments Program
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Resolution Awarding State Lobbyist/Consulting Services
	Announcements & Communications
	Closed Session to Discuss Pending Litigation
	Adjournment

	NamePositionRow1: Tommy Meeks
	ComputationRow1: 1000 (rate) x 12 (mo)
	CostRow1: 12000.00
	NamePositionRow2: 
	ComputationRow2: 
	CostRow2: 
	NamePositionRow3: 
	ComputationRow3: 
	CostRow3: 
	NamePositionRow4: 
	ComputationRow4: 
	CostRow4: 
	NamePositionRow5: 
	ComputationRow5: 
	CostRow5: 
	NamePositionRow6: 
	ComputationRow6: 
	CostRow6: 
	CostTOTAL SALARY: 12000
	SALARY NARRATIVE: Tommy Meeks works every Thursday from 8 am to 5 pm at the Resource Intervention Center, in the field seeking employers, or meeting with potential employers. He also meets with clients and employers on his off days via telephone, transportation, to give advise, or provide other support. 1,000 (mo) x 12 (mos) = $12,000.00 total cost
	AmountA Personnel: 12000
	AmountB Fringe Benefits: 0
	AmountC Travel: 0
	AmountD Supplies: 0
	AmountE Other Costs: 0
	AmountTOTAL PROJECT COSTS: 12000


